
 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 
 

14 July 2023 
 

Audit Committee 
 

A meeting of the Audit Committee will be held on Monday, 24 July 2023 in the Council 
Chamber, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL at 10.00 am for the transaction of 
business set out on the attached Agenda.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Debbie Barnes OBE 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
Membership of the Audit Committee 
(7 Members of the Council and 2 Non-Voting Added Members) 
 
Councillors Mrs S Rawlins (Chairman), M G Allan (Vice-Chairman), S Bunney, P E Coupland, 
J L King, P A Skinner and A N Stokes 
 
Non-Voting Added Members 
 
Mr I Haldenby, Independent Added Member 
Mr A Middleton, Independent Added Member 
 

Public Document Pack





 

AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 MONDAY, 24 JULY 2023 

 
Item Title 

 
Pages  

 
1  Apologies for Absence  

 
 

 
2  Declarations of Members' Interest  

 
 

 
3  Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 19 June 2023  

 
5 - 10 

 
4  Monitoring Officer Annual Report  

(To receive a report from David Coleman, Monitoring Officer, which 
enables the Committee to considers the Monitoring Officer's Annual 
Report) 
 

11 - 18 

 
5  Update on the CIPFA Financial Management Code and Financial 

Resilience  
(To receive a report from Michelle Grady, Assistant Director – Finance, 
and Sue Maycock, Strategic Finance Lead – Technical, which enables the 
Committee to scrutinise and comment on progress reported against the 
CIPFA Financial Management Code Action Plan and on the findings of 
the Grant Thornton independent review of the Council’s compliance 
with the CIPFA Financial Management Code) 
 

19 - 76 

 
6  Internal Audit Progress Report 2023/2024  

(To receive a report from Claire Goodenough, Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management, which provides the Committee with details of 
the audit work completed to 1st July 2023, information on delivery 
progress and opportunity to raise any matters of relevance) 
 

77 - 90 

 
7  Internal Audit Plan 2023/2024  

(To receive a report from Claire Goodenough, Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management, which provides the Committee with the 
2023/2024 Audit Plan and reasoning for the Audit areas chosen) 
 

91 - 100 

 
8  Counter Fraud Work Plan 2023/24  

(To receive a report from Dianne Downs, Audit Manager, which 
provides the Committee with information on the proposed counter 
fraud activities for 2023/24 and draft Counter Fraud Work Plan) 
 

101 - 120 

 
9  Audit Committee Work Programme  

(To receive a report by Claire Goodenough, Head of Internal Audit and 
Risk Management, which invites the Committee to consider its work 
programme) 
 

121 - 128 

 
 
 
 



 
 
Democratic Services Officer Contact Details  
 
Name: Thomas Crofts 
Direct Dial 07769 368547 
E Mail Address thomas.crofts@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 
Please Note: for more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 

 
Contact details set out above. 
 
Please note: This meeting will be broadcast live on the internet and access can be 
sought by accessing Agenda for Audit Committee on Monday, 24th July, 2023, 10.00 
am (moderngov.co.uk) 
 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records 
 
 

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=7342&Ver=4
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=7342&Ver=4
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records


  1 

 
 AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 19 JUNE 2023 

 
PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR  MRS S RAWLINS (CHAIRMAN) 
 
Councillors M G Allan (Vice-Chairman), S Bunney, P E Coupland, J L King, P A Skinner and 
A N Stokes 
 
Also in attendance: Mr A Middleton (Independent Added Member)  
 
Officers in attendance:- 
Andrew Crookham (Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director), Claire Goodenough (Head 
of Audit and Risk Management), David Ingram (Head of Information Assurance), Diane 
Downs (Audit Manager), Michelle Grady (Assistant Director - Finance), Sue Maycock 
(Strategic Finance Lead – Technical) and Thomas Crofts (Democratic Services Officer)   
  
1     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
An apology for absence was received from Ian Haldenby (Independent Added Member). 
  
2     DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest made at this point in proceedings. 
  
3     MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 27 MARCH 2023 

 
RESOLVED 
  
That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 March 2023 be signed by the Chairman as a 
correct record. 
  
4     DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2022/23 

 
Councillor Mrs S Rawlins (Chairman) declared that she was member of the ESPO 
Management Committee for openness and transparency. 
  
Consideration was given to the 2022/23 draft statement of accounts, presented by the 
Strategic Finance Lead – Technical. The following matters were highlighted: 
  

   The 2021/22 accounts were subject to a national issue concerning local authorities’ 
management of infrastructure assets. The Council had successfully managed these 
assets over the years and had disposed of them as necessary. However, this did not 
necessarily prove compliance, and as such the Council was pursuing the statutory 
override to confirm compliance despite maintaining well catalogued assets. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
19 JUNE 2023 
 

   Another national issue emerged relating to the valuations of Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) liabilities, which had delayed reporting as previously 
calculated values did not tally with necessary changes to reporting periods. 250 other 
councils were in a similar situation and the matter had been raised with central 
government. 

   It had been a challenging year due to national economic pressures and the rollout of 
the Council’s new Business World system. However, the Council was in a financially 
stable position and had received positive feedback from CIPFA and Grant Thornton 
and had achieved an outstanding report from Ofsted. 

   Despite inflationary pressures, the Council held an underspend on the revenue and 
financial budget. 

   There had been significant movement in the Councils balance sheets, largely due to 
recalculations in relation to pension liabilities. 

  
The Committee considered the report, and the following comments were raised: 
  

   Regarding the Council’s management of infrastructure assets, pursuing the statutory 
override in order to satisfy the audit would not have any impact on taxpayers or 
service delivery as the assets in question were not saleable. However, the need to 
pursue the statutory override for a well-maintained group of assets in order to meet 
audit criteria had caused delays to signing off the Council’s financial position. 

   There was nothing concerning in the audit’s findings, and it showed that the Council 
was in a comfortable position. 

   There were no major changes anticipated from external audit. 
   The National Audit Office had advised auditors to be more accommodating and sense 

check their recommendations to ensure audits were fit for the purposes of local 
authorities, as audits had historically treated local authorities like businesses and 
measured their financial management against metrics that did not necessarily apply 
to the public sector. 

   Capital overspends were largely due to inflation. Technical issues and delays had 
contributed to cost escalation of large projects, which had been compounded by 
rising inflation over time. Over delivery, in some instances, had also contributed to 
rising costs, as more work was able to be undertaken within a set time than had been 
anticipated.  

   Funding had become more reliant on revenue collection over the years. However, an 
increase in council tax collection had been reported as more houses were built and 
occupied. Revenue streams were reliable and presented little risk to the Council’s 
financial management. 

   The Council was currently making its highest use ever of the apprenticeships levy, with 
approximately 80% of all apprentices retained. The Committee felt that the use of 
the levy should be maximised. 

   CallConnect was the only private company owned by the Council as a non-profit 
service. 

Page 6



3 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

19 JUNE 2023 
 

   Pension liabilities had changed largely due to a fall in the nation’s life expectancy and 
fluctuations in the property market, which had impacted the difference between 
useable and non-useable reserves. 

   Future funding from central government remained uncertain while increases to council 
tax presented a challenge to already squeezed households. 

   The Committee were informed that the Council’s financial position was as follows: 
o   £48million was held in reserves, which should last up to four years based on 

current assumptions. 
o   323 cash backed assets were held. 
o   More internal borrowing was being pursued to meet inflationary demands. 
o   A certainty of income had been demonstrated and cashflow was in a good 

position. 
o   Salary banding had remined similar, but inflation had pushed up pay. 

  
RESOLVED 
  
That the draft Statement of Accounts 2022/23 and comments made be noted. 
  
5     INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 

 
Consideration was given to a report presented by the Head of Audit and Risk Management. 
The opinion from the Head of internal Audit was that the Council was performing well 
overall, and that internal control was performing adequately but presented no concerns. 
  
The Committee considered the report, and the following comments were raised: 
  

   It was too early to calculate if there had been improvements in health performance 
regarding the introduction of the new Integrated Care Board system. However, it was 
assured that this was to be scrutinised by the Health and Wellbeing Board and Health 
Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire. The annual combined assurance report would 
also give the Audit Committee the opportunity to review its financial performance.  

   Internal Audit’s resourcing was to be closed watched and additional resources 
explored. 

   The rollout of the new Business World system meant that some performance targets 
had been missed due to the system having to be temporarily paused while data was 
transferred. 

   Work was underway to improve the timeliness of report writing. 
   The Council was in dialogue with Boston Academy to help improve assurances. 

  
  
RESOLVED 
  

1. That the content of the Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion and Report be received. 
2. That the results of Internal Audit work and delivery of the internal Audit Plan – 

evaluating the overall effectiveness of the Internal Audit function in discharging its 

Page 7



4 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
19 JUNE 2023 
 

statutory responsibilities and meeting the Council’s ‘third line of defence’ assurance 
needs be noted.     

  
6     COUNTER FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 

 
Consideration was given to a report presented by the Audit Manager. The following matters 
were reported: 
  

   Regarding the UK fraud landscape, national estimates were not up to date, but it was 
evident that that there was a growing risk. 

   The following risks were highlighted: 
o   Cyber crime – high risk 
o   Financial abuse – substantial 
o   Corruption – medium 

   The Council’s counter fraud staffing resources were limited – with three members of 
staff having left the authority within the past year. However, assurance was given 
that the Council’s fraud risk controls remained effective. 

  
The Committee considered the report, and the following comments were raised: 
  

   Solutions to the counter fraud team’s staffing situation were being explored. 
   All instances of fraud identified by the Council were always fully reported. 
   The Committee agreed that deterring fraud was the best option and that the risks 

associated with falsely reporting fraud were balanced with the risk of fraud itself. 
  
RESOLVED 
  
That the Counter Fraud Annual Report for 2022/23 and comments made be noted. 
  
7     INFORMATION ASSURANCE ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 

 
Consideration was given to a report presented by the Head of Information Assurance. The 
following matters were reported: 
  

       The demand for information assurance services throughout the reporting year 
increased significantly with another year-on-year increase in engagement across all 
three strands of the service. 

       Significant effort had been made to promote the service and to raise awareness of 
the benefits of good information assurance. 

       Cyber Security risks were continuously increasing, and work was ongoing to protect 
against current and future threats. 

       Work continued to reduce risk in relation to hard copy records and good progress 
was being made, however significant effort was still required before the risk would 
fall within tolerance.  

Page 8



5 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

19 JUNE 2023 
 

       Effective processes were in place to respond to security incidents and data protection 
complaints and infringements. 

       The Information Assurance service remained highly visible and was contributing to a 
positive information culture within the organisation. 

  
The Committee considered the report, and the following comments were raised: 
  

       Data breaches had increased by 13%. This increase had been caused by better 
reporting of instances of human error. None of these instances needed to be 
reported to the Information Commissioners Office as they had been successfully 
resolved at the point of being identified. 

       The importance of managing digitised records was raised. This included data 
cleansing and effective retention.  

       Confidential paper records were disposed of via onsite shredding and secure 
contracted disposal. 

  
RESOLVED 
  

1. That the report and comments made be noted. 
2. That the content of the Information Assurance Annual Report for 2022/23 be 

approved. 
  
8     DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2022/23 

 
Consideration was given to a report presented by the Head of Audit and Risk Management. 
It was reported that there was a positive assurance picture for the Council overall and that 
two areas for improvement have been identified. These two areas concerned developing 
further links between the delivery of the Corporate Plan and how resources were utilised in 
that delivery and developing the One Council approach designed to encourage and deliver 
effective team working. 
  
The Committee considered the report and agreed that it accurately reflected the Council’s 
situation and operations.  
  
RESOLVED 
  

1. That the Committee agree that the Draft Annual Governance Statement accurately 
reflects how the Council is run. 

2. That the Draft Statement included the significant governance issues/key risks expected 
to be published. 

3. That the Draft Statement be approved by the Committee and its adoption be 
recommended to Council subject to necessary updates with relevant links to 
documents as they are approved for inclusion in the final statement. 

  
9     AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

 

Page 9



6 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
19 JUNE 2023 
 
The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management introduced the Work Programme which 
provided the Committee with core assurance activities currently scheduled for the year. 
  
It was advised that the Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report was to be moved to the next 
meeting and that the item on Integration of Health and Social Care (including IMT) was to be 
programmed for the meeting in September 2023. 
  
RESOLVED       
  
That the work programme as amended above be approved. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 12.05 pm 

Page 10



      
  

 

Open Report on behalf of David Coleman, Monitoring Officer 

 

Report to: Audit Committee 

Date: 24 July 2023 

Subject: Monitoring Officer Annual Report  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This Report introduces the Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer for 2022/23. 
 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Audit Committee receives and considers the Monitoring Officer's Annual 
Report  

 

 
Background 
 
At its meeting on 18 November 2019 the Audit Committee resolved that an annual report 
from the Monitoring Officer be brought to the Audit Committee.  This report sets out that 
Annual Report for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023. 
 
Role of the Monitoring Officer 
 
The law requires the County Council to designate one of its senior officers as the 
Monitoring Officer.  I have been designated in this role since 1 October 2018.   
 
Under the Constitution I maintain an up-to-date version of the Constitution and ensure 
that it is widely available for consultation by Councillors, Officers and the public.   
 
One of my main duties as the Monitoring Officer is to ensure that the County Council acts 
and operates within the law.  I advise on whether decisions of the Executive are lawful and 
in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework.  I have to report to the full Council 
or to the Executive if I consider that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to 
unlawfulness.   Such a report would have the effect of stopping the proposal or decision 
being implemented until the report has been considered.    
 
I report to the Executive or full Council where the Local Government Ombudsman issues a 
Public Report in respect of maladministration or a failure to provide services or a failure in 
any services provided, under section 31 of the Local Government Act 1974.   

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 
I also help promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Council members, officers, 
partners and contractors.  When required I process complaints about alleged breaches of 
the code of conduct in accordance with the local arrangements and work with the Audit 
Committee to deal with breaches and to achieve high standards. 
 
The standards regime also requires that councillors register their disclosable pecuniary 
interests.   I am responsible for ensuring that the register is being maintained and consider 
applications in relating to the granting of dispensations.  
 
In addition to the above I also fulfil a number of duties that do not necessarily result from 
the statutory functions of the Monitoring Officer.  In particular I am:- 
 

• the Senior Responsible Officer in respect of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act 2000; and 

 

• the Responsible Officer for the Council's Whistle Blowing Policy (Confidential 
Reporting Code).  The Audit Committee receives an Annual Report on this from the 
Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management.  

 
Ensuring Lawfulness 
 
Every Decision-Making Report that comes before the County Council, the Executive or an 
individual Executive Councillor is required to contain a Legal Comment. 
 
As a result there is a robust process for identifying the legal issues raised by any proposed 
decision and ensuring that these are addressed in the Report.  This consideration of legal 
issues deals with the powers of the Council to take the steps proposed any procedural 
issues such as the requirement for consultation, the way in which the decision is proposed 
to be implemented (e.g. compliance with procurement obligations) and the rationality of 
the decision – i.e. whether the report sets out a legally sound case for the course of action 
recommended.  
 
I am pleased to report that as a result of these controls there were no occasions where 
the Monitoring Officer had to issue a formal report relating to the lawfulness of a decision.   
 
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
 
In 2022/23 there were 64 referrals to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
(LGSCO) concerning Lincolnshire County Council.  This is down from 68 in 2021/22 but still 
higher than the 48 in 2020/21.  Of these 35 were not investigated by the LGSCO.  Of the 29 
that were investigated 8 of the investigations had not concluded at the date these figures 
were compiled and will fall into next year's report. 
 
Of the remaining 21 cases:- 
 

• 2 were remedied to the satisfaction of the LGSCO without the investigation being 
concluded 

Page 12



• 12 were investigated and no fault was found (up from 5) 

• 7 resulted in findings of fault (up from 4) 

• None of these resulted in a public report 
 
The areas where fault were found are as follows: 
 

Fault Action Taken 

The LGSCO found that the Council was at 
fault when it failed to consider a complaint 
under the Children’s Services statutory 
complaints process.  Although the 
complaint was over a year old the Council 
failed to have proper regard to the 
Guidance which raises a presumption in 
favour of considering such complaints.  
 

The Council agreed to pay £150 
compensation and consider the complaint 
at stage 2 of the statutory process 

The LGSCO found that the Council was at 
fault for failing to review Mr B’s Education 
Health and Care Plan within statutory 
timescales and for failing on two occasions 
to send the necessary paperwork to Mr B at 
least two weeks prior to the date set for the 
review. 
 

The Council agreed to apologise to Mr B 
and to Mr X, Mr B’s step-father, and to 
make a payment of £100 to Mr B and £100 
to Mr X. 

The LGSCO found that the Council was at 
fault for failing to provide Occupational 
Therapy provision contained in an 
Education Health and Care Plan for 11 
months and failing to respond to 
correspondence from Miss X enquiring as to 
progress with her complaint. 

The Council apologised to Miss X in writing.  
The Council also agreed to pay Miss X £300 
in recognition of her avoidable distress and 
time and trouble and to pay her child, Z, 
£3,300 being £300 for every month of 
missed OT provision. 
 
The Council has also taken the following 
action to improve its services as 
recommended by the LGSCO: 
 
• Reminded relevant staff of the duty to 

ensure the provision in an Education 
Health and Care Plan is in place within 
five weeks of a Tribunal’s order. 

•   Reminded relevant staff that the Council 
should communicate any delays securing 
provision in an Education Health and 
Care Plan to the parent or young person. 

• Reminded relevant staff responsible for 
complaints that the Council should 
acknowledge and respond to complaints 
correspondence promptly. 

 

Page 13



The LGSCO found that the Council was at 
fault for (i) delays in resolving a dispute 
regarding the calculation of Mrs X’s assets 
and whether she was required to self-fund 
or contribute towards the cost of her care 
and (ii) delays and failings in 
communication with Mr X, Mrs X’s 
husband.  
 

The Council agreed to apologise to Mr X 
and pay him £250 in recognition of the 
frustration, distress and time and trouble 
he experienced as a result of the delays in 
resolving the dispute  

The LGSCO found that the Council was at 
fault for delay in putting a support package 
in place for Ms D.  
 

The Council agreed to apologise to Ms D’s 
mother Mrs C for the time, trouble and 
distress caused by the delay in finding a 
care agency and pay her £500. 
 

Mrs X complained about how the Council 
dealt with her request for additional 
education travel support for her child who 
was temporarily confined to a wheelchair 
after a planned surgery.  
 
There was fault by the Council in that it  
failed to clearly set out the post-16 
transport payment process 
 
There was further fault and delay by the 
Council in dealing with and resolving Mrs 
X’s request after she paid the post-16 
transport contribution  
 
The Council missed the taxi support 
requirement Y needed due to her 
temporary medical  and failed to return the 
risk assessment form needed to commence 
the service to the taxi company. 
 

The Council has accepted its failings, agreed  
 

• To apologise in writing to Y and Mrs X in 
recognition of the identified faults  

•  pay Y £100 for the loss of some education 
during the period Y was left without a 
suitable taxi service  

•  pay Mrs X’s mileage allowance for the 
journeys to transport Y to and from 
school until the Council arranged a 
suitable taxi service for Y 

•   by training or other means remind staff 
of the importance of providing residents 
with clear and robust information in a 
timely manner 

•   provide the Ombudsman with a copy of 
and an update on the Council’s 3-year 
transformation programme which is to 
address its communication processes 
and practice failings. 

 
The Council will also 
 

• review the communication strategies 
and practices of transfer of information 
between its various departments to 
ensure school transport applications are 
dealt with effectively and in a timely 
manner 

•   review the Council’s school and college 
transport policy and procedures to 
clearly set out transport payment 
processes, payment deadlines and 
transport support refund request criteria 

Page 14



to include post-16 transport payment 
process 

• after the completion of the reviews 
above, by training or other means 
educate staff about the reviewed 
communication strategies and practices, 
the reviewed school transport policy in 
relation to the payment processes and 
refund request criteria 

•   explain to the Ombudsman what steps 
the Council will take to monitor 
performance against timescales. 

 

Mr X complained the Council had not 
complied with the disability elements of the 
statutory guidance for the Traffic 
Management Act when it introduced an 
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order.  
 
The LGSCO found fault with the Council for 
failing to liaise and consult with local 
disability groups when designing its 
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order and 
for failing to consider completing an 
equality assessment and for poor record 
keeping.  
 

The Council agreed to  
 

• provide a public apology directed at local 
disability groups for the failure to liaise 
or consult with them before introduction 
of the Experimental Traffic Regulation 
Order. 

• Produce guidance and training to staff 
about the need to consider liaising and 
consulting with relevant stakeholders 
and representative bodies as part of the 
development of any Traffic Regulation 
Order. 

•   Produce guidance and training to staff to 
staff about the need to consider equality 
and accessibility issues, including 
consideration of an assessment, as part 
of any Traffic Regulation Order. 

•   Provide training to staff about the 
importance of record keep about its 
decisions.  

 

 
The Ombudsman publishes all of its decision notices on its website in anonymised form 
whether or not a finding is made against the Council.  
 
Standards 
 
Complaints 
 
From 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 there were 3 complaints of breach of the Code of 
Conduct.   
 
 

Page 15



This is a reduction from the 7 incidents giving rise to complaints in 2022/23.  One of these 
complaints was made by one County Councillor against another County Councillor.  The 
other two were from members of the public.  
 
One of the complaints did not engage the Code of Conduct and one was referred to the 
relevant Group Leader with a view to informal resolution.  One complaint is still under 
consideration. 
 
There have been no formal hearings under the Local Arrangements. 
 
Independent Persons 
 
The Council appoints Independent persons to assist it in determining any outcomes of an 
investigation.  The Council currently only has one Independent Person, Alan Pickering.  Mr 
Pickering has indicated his wish to stand down and the Council is in the process of 
appointing replacement Independent Persons. 
 
Register of Councillors' disclosable pecuniary interests 
 
All Councillors have made entries on their register of disclosable pecuniary interests.  A 
number of councillors amended their entries during the year as their circumstances 
changed.   
 
Members' disclosures are reviewed on a regular basis by the Head of Democratic Services. 
 
Where a member has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter which would prevent 
them taking part in discussion or voting on an agenda item, the member can nonetheless 
take part in the debate and vote if they have a dispensation from the Monitoring Officer. 
 
No dispensations were requested or granted during 2022/23. 
 
Register of Officers' Interests 
 
Managers continue to ensure that officers are aware of their obligations in respect of the 
Register of Officers' Interests. The register is maintained by the Democratic Services team 
and is regularly reviewed. 
 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 2000 
 
Under the above Act the Council is able to authorise the use of covert surveillance of two 
types:- 
 

• Directed surveillance which is surveillance not carried out in residential premises 
or a private vehicle and which is conducted for the purposes of a specific 
investigation or operation; and 

• The use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources which includes undercover officers, 
public informants and people who make test purchases 

 

Page 16



No authorisations were sought for the use of covert surveillance during the period 
covered by this Report. 
 
Whistleblowing 
 
The administration of the Confidential Reporting Policy is undertaken by Internal Audit 
and separately reported on to the Audit Committee.  
 

Conclusion 

The Report sets the Monitoring Officer Annual Report for 2022/23. It provides the 
Committee with information from which it can carry out its assurance function in relation 
to areas of the Council's business which fall within the Monitoring Officer's remit. 
 
Consultation 

 
 
 

 

 

 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

As detailed in the report 

 

Background Papers 
 
The following background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

Background Paper Where it can be viewed 

Audit Committee Report dated 26 
September 2022 titled “Monitoring Officer 
Annual Report 

Democratic Services 

 
 
This report was written by David Coleman, who can be contacted at 
david.coleman@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andrew Crookham, Executive Director of Resources 

 

Report to: Audit Committee 

Date: 24 July 2023 

Subject: 
Update on the CIPFA Financial Management Code and 
Financial Resilience 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

The Audit Committee last received a report on the CIPFA Financial Management Code on 
26 September 2022. That report set out an action plan and timescales for implementing 
the requirements of the CIPFA Financial Management Code.   
 
This report provides an update on progress so far against the action plan, which is shown 
in Appendix A. One of the actions was to commission an external review of the Council’s 
financial resilience. This action has been completed and the resulting report is included 
at Appendix B. The review encompassed the Council’s compliance with the CIPFA 
Financial Management Code and was conducted by Grant Thornton. Representatives 
from Grant Thornton will present their findings at the Committee meeting. 

 

 

Actions Required: 

Members of the Audit Committee are asked to scrutinise and comment on progress 
reported against the CIPFA Financial Management Code Action Plan, which is attached 
to this report as Appendix A, and on the findings of the Grant Thornton independent 
review of Lincolnshire County Council’s compliance with the CIPFA Financial 
Management Code, which is attached as Appendix B. 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) has introduced 

the Financial Management (FM) Code, recognising that good financial 
management is an essential element of good governance and longer-term service 
planning, factors which are critical in ensuring that local service provision is 
sustainable.  

 
1.2 The FM Code is based on a series of principles supported by specific standards 

which are considered necessary to provide the strong foundation to:  

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 

• financially manage the short, medium and long-term finances of a local 
authority;  

• manage financial resilience to meet unforeseen demands on services; and  

• manage unexpected shocks in their financial circumstances.  

 
1.3 The FM Code is consistent with other established CIPFA codes and statements in 

being based on principles rather than prescription. This code incorporates their 
existing requirements on local government to provide a comprehensive picture of 
financial management in local authorities.  

 
1.4 The six principles of good financial management are:  
 

• Organisational leadership – demonstrating a clear strategic direction based on 
a vision in which financial management is embedded into organisational 
culture.  

• Accountability – based on medium-term financial planning that drives the 
annual budget process supported by effective risk management, quality 
supporting data and whole life costs.  

• Financial management is undertaken with transparency at its core using 
consistent, meaningful and understandable data, reported frequently with 
evidence of periodic officer action and elected member decision making.  

• Adherence to professional standards is promoted by the leadership team and 
is evidenced.  

• Sources of assurance are recognised as an effective tool mainstreamed into 
financial management, including political scrutiny and the results of external 
audit, internal audit and inspection.  

• The long-term sustainability of local services is at the heart of all financial 
management processes and is evidenced by prudent use of public resources.  

 
1.5 Each local authority must demonstrate that the requirements of the code are 

being satisfied. Demonstrating this compliance with the FM Code is a collective 
responsibility of elected members, the chief finance officer (CFO) and their 
professional colleagues in the leadership team. The FM Code was launched during 
2019, with a compliance requirement from 2021/22. Due to the Covid-19 
pandemic CIPFA concluded that while the first full year of compliance with the FM 
Code should remain as 2021/2022, it can be within a more flexible framework 
where a proportionate approach is encouraged. In practice this is likely to mean 
that adherence to some parts of the Code will demonstrate a direction of travel.  

 
1.6 The table (Action Plan) shown at Appendix A has evolved over time and now 

includes the following information: 

Page 20



 

 

• The first two columns show the CIPFA Financial Management Standard letter 
and description taken from the Code. 

• The third column shows the results of the self-assessment we carried out to 
evidence our current compliance with the FM Code and any actions required. 
In this iteration of the Action Plan, text has been added to this column in red 
font, to show the conclusions reached by Grant Thornton where they have 
determined an “amber” status or where they have identified an area for 
potential improvement. 

• The fourth column shows the target date and the role with the assigned 
responsibility of ensuring that the action is completed. Where original target 
dates have been exceeded, new target dates have now been added. 

• The final column provides an update on progress made so far against each 
action. 

 
1.7 The Action Plan in Appendix A shows that most actions have been progressed to 

some extent, and two actions are now complete. 
 
1.8 The independent review of the Council’s compliance with the CIPFA Financial 

Management Code was carried out by Grant Thornton between December 2022 
and March 2023. Their conclusion was that “the Council is operating in line with 
the requirements across all the criteria in regard to the substance of the 
arrangements and also the spirit in which they are intended”. They did not find any 
significant issues that the Council was previously unaware of, and they report that 
this “reflects the strong grip on financial management that is reflected in our 
detailed findings”. Grant Thornton also noted that there is good practice in a 
number of areas, notably the interaction between finance business partners and 
services in financial planning and monitoring which they found to be “particularly 
strong”. 

 
1.9 Some areas for potential further development were also highlighted (on page 5 of 

the report itself), and these have been added to the relevant area of the Action 
Plan at Appendix A in red font. Grant Thornton have concluded that four standards 
of the Financial Management Code are rated “amber” and the other thirteen 
standards are rated “green”. This is also reflected on the Action Plan at Appendix 
A. 

 
 
2. Conclusion 

2.1  This Committee is invited to scrutinise the updated action plan attached at Appendix 
A, and the Grant Thornton review of the Council’s compliance with the CIPFA 
Financial Management Code attached at Appendix B, and to provide any feedback 
on these documents. 

 
 

Page 21



 

 

3. Consultation 
 
a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

N/A 

 
4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A CIPFA Financial Management Code Action Plan 

Appendix B Grant Thornton Report – Review of Lincolnshire County Council’s 
Compliance with the CIPFA Financial Management Code 

 
 
5. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
This report was written by Michelle Grady, who can be contacted on 01522 553235 or 
michelle.grady@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 22



 

 

Appendix A 

CIPFA FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT CODE – ACTION PLAN 

FM 
Standard 
Ref 

FM Standard Self-Assessment Conclusion 
Highlights from Grant Thornton report 

Target Date & 
Responsibility 

Update July 2023 

A The leadership team is able to 
demonstrate that the services 
provided by LCC provide value 
for money. 

Green – compliant and no further 
improvements required. 
GT report has rated this as “Amber”. We 
have included actions to address this 
under E below. 

N/A For next actions see 
Standard E below. 

B LCC complies with the CIPFA 
Statement on the Role of the 
Chief Finance Officer in Local 
Government. 

Green – compliant but improvement 
suggested: 
Continue to develop the skills required to 
future proof and enable the finance team 
to support the council in line with the 
requirements of this FM Code. In 
particular around Business Partnering and 
to be an enabling service supporting VFM. 

 
 
31/03/23 31/12/23 
Head of Financial 
Services 

 
 
A Skills Matrix has been 
developed and Finance 
team members are 
currently completing this. 
Next step: the results will 
be used to create a 
training and 
development programme 
for the team. 

C The leadership team 
demonstrates in its actions and 
behaviours responsibility for 
governance and internal control. 

Green – compliant but improvement 
suggested: 
Assess our governance arrangements 
against the new 'Governance Risk and 
Resilience Framework'. Implement 
improvement action identified in the AGS 
- 2021 

 
 
31/03/23 30/10/23 
Head of Audit and 
Risk 

 
 
The organisation has 
undertaken a cultural 
stocktake and CLT are 
formulating an action 
plan resulting from this. 

P
age 23

A
ppendix A



 

 

D LCC applies the CIPFA/ SOLACE 
Delivering Good Governance in 
Local Government: Framework 
(2016). 

Green - compliant and no further 
improvements required. 
External Quality Assessment of our 
Internal Audit function 

 
 
COMPLETE 
 

 
 
We comply with the 
Code 

E The financial management style 
of LCC supports financial 
sustainability. 

Green – compliant but improvements 
suggested: 

• Continuous improvement for 
financial skills, to move to a 
mature financial management 
style. Monitoring completion of 
financial literacy training.  

• Look at a more systematic 
approach to  areas of service for 
review to ensure value for money 
and financial sustainability. (See 
GT report pg 5 “Demonstrating 
value for money at service level”) 

 
 
 
31/03/23 31/12/23 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
 
 
31/12/23 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
 
  

 
 
 
See update for B above. 
 
 
 
 
 
A model has been 
proposed and accepted 
by CLT. 
Next step: areas for 
review to be identified 
using this model. 

F LCC has carried out a credible 
and transparent financial 
resilience assessment. 

Green – compliant but improvements 
suggested: 

• To bring forward our publishing of 
the MTFS for 2022 and to include 
the range of positions forecast 
from a number of scenarios (i.e. 
including best and worst case 
risks).  

 
 
 
31/12/24 
28/02/24 
Assistant Director 
Finance 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
This will be considered as 
part of this year’s budget 
setting process. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 24



 

 

• Review risk management toolkit 
and training materials to support 
emerging risks around financial 
sustainability etc.          

 

 

 

 

 

• Commission an external review of 
financial resilience. 

 
31/03/23 
Head of Audit and 
Risk 
COMPLETE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/23 
Assistant Director 
Finance 
COMPLETE 
 

 
The risk toolkit has been 
reviewed and continues 
to develop alongside the 
increased profile risk 
across the Council. 
Emerging risks and the 
reporting processes for 
these continue to 
develop to aid the 
effective management of 
our risk service – part of 
our 3-year strategy. 
 
 
Review completed and 
report attached at 
Appendix B. 

G LCC understands its prospects for 
financial sustainability in the 
longer term and has reported 
this clearly to members. 

Amber - and improvement required: 
Development of a longer term financial 
strategy to demonstrate robust approach 
to financial sustainability and alignment 
with our Corporate plan and budget. 
(See GT report pg 5 “Longer term 
financial planning”. GT report has also 
rated this as “Amber”) 

 
31/03/23 
28/02/24 
Assistant Director 
Finance 

 
This will be considered as 
part of this year’s budget 
setting process. 
 
 

P
age 25



 

 

H LCC complies with the CIPFA 
Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities. 

Green - compliant and no further 
improvements required. 

N/A We comply with the 
Code 

I LCC has a rolling multi-year 
medium-term financial plan 
consistent with sustainable 
service plans. 

Green – compliant but improvement 
suggested: 
To ensure our capital programme clearly 
aligns with the corporate plan and asset 
strategies, particularly as part of the 
budget setting process. The council has 
individual asset management strategies, 
but these need bringing together with 
one overarching strategy to prioritise and 
support spending decisions. Budget 
proposals need to align with service 
performance. 

 
 
31/03/23 
31/03/24 
Head of Financial 
Services 

 
 
We are currently 
analysing our Balance 
Sheet assets to 
determine whether or 
not asset management 
strategies exist for all 
assets. 
Next step: Plan for any 
gaps to be filled, then 
create one single council-
wide overarching 
strategy. 

J LCC complies with its statutory 
obligations in respect of the 
budget setting process. 

Green - compliant and no further 
improvements required. 

N/A We comply with the 
Code 

K The budget report includes a 
statement by the Chief Finance 
Officer on the robustness of the 
estimates and a statement on 
the adequacy of the proposed 
financial reserves. 

Green - compliant and no further 
improvements required. 

N/A We comply with the 
Code 

L LCC has engaged where 31 How 
has the authority sought to 
engage with key stakeholders in 
developing its long-term financial 

Amber - and improvement required: 
We need to develop a long term financial 
strategy to ensure our services reflect the 

 
31/03/23 
28/02/24 

 
This will be considered as 
part of this year’s budget 
setting process. 

P
age 26



 

 

The Council's Constitution 
ensures we consult with 
Members Page 148 appropriate 
with key stakeholders in 
developing its long-term financial 
strategy, medium-term financial 
plan and annual budget. 

engagement with our residents and the 
delivery of the ten year Corporate plan. 
(See GT report pg 5 “Consultation with 
stakeholders”. GT report has also rated 
this as “Amber”) 

Assistant Director 
Finance 

 

M LCC uses an appropriate 
documented option appraisal 
methodology to demonstrate the 
value for money of its decisions. 

Amber - and improvement required: 
Roll out use of consistent options 
appraisal tool to support the decision- 
making process and incorporate principles 
if appropriate of Project and Investment 
Appraisal for Sustainable Value Creation: 
Principles in Project and Investment 
Appraisal 
(See GT report pg 5 “Options appraisal 
for key financial decisions”. GT report 
has also rated this as “Amber”) 
 

 
31/03/23 
31/12/23 
Head of Financial 
Services 

 
This work is in progress. 
 

N The leadership team takes action 
using reports enabling it to 
identify and correct emerging 
risks to its budget strategy and 
financial sustainability. 

Green – compliant but improvements 
suggested: 

• To align our financial reporting 
with service performance 
reporting providing business 
intelligence for decision making.  

 

 

 
 
 
30/06/23 
Head of Financial 
Services 
COMPLETE 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
‘DLT Insights’ is now 
operational.  This report 
brings these elements 
together and feeds into 
CLT.  The format and 
content will continuously 
evolve to meet the needs of 
the organisation. 
 

P
age 27



 

 

• To include details of the Council 
owned companies within our 
reporting consider their impact on 
services and financial 
sustainability. 

 
31/12/22 
31/08/23 
Head of Financial 
Services 

 
A review against the 
CIPFA publication “Local 
Authority Owned 
Companies: a good 
practice guide” has been 
completed. Although we 
only have one company 
currently trading and 
that is not at a level 
material to the Council’s 
accounts, the review 
indicated a reasonable 
standard of compliance 
with good practice. In 
light of changes in the 
market in recent years, a 
specialist review of that 
company has been 
commissioned to ensure 
that the Council is fully 
sighted on the 
operational, financial, 
governance and 
commercial 
opportunities and risks 
that may impact on the 
Council and the company 
in the immediate and 
medium term. 

P
age 28



 

 

O The leadership team monitors 
the elements of its balance sheet 
that pose a significant risk to its 
financial sustainability. 

Amber - and improvements required: 
 

• To report planned and actual use 
of reserves together as part of our 
quarterly monitoring reports to 
members.  

• To identify any other areas of the 
balance sheet that may pose a 
significant risk to the council, and 
include these if relevant in our 
financial management reports 
(e.g. debtors, cash balances) To 
undertake a review using the tools 
in "Balance Sheet Management in 
the Public Services: A Framework 
for Good Practice CIPFA 2017" and 
introduce processes to ensure that 
information about key assets and 
liabilities in the balance sheet is 
sound and current platform for 
management. 

 
 
 
COMPLETE 
 
 
 
31/03/23 
Head of Financial 
Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A review was carried out 
using the CIPFA 
framework and three 
areas were identified as 
higher risk, where 
reporting should be 
enhanced: Property Land 
& Buildings / 
Infrastructure Assets / 
Short Term Debtors. 
Next step: Reporting on 
Land & Buildings and 
Infrastructure Assets to 
be linked to I above. 
Reporting to be further 
developed for Short Term 
Debtors. 

P The Chief Finance Officer has 
personal and statutory 
responsibility for ensuring that 
the statement of accounts 
produced by LCC complies with 
the reporting requirements of 

Green – compliant and no further 
improvements required. 

N/A We comply with the 
Code 

P
age 29



 

 

the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom. 

Q The presentation of the final 
outturn figures and variations 
from budget allows the 
leadership team to make 
strategic financial decisions. 

Green – compliant and no further 
improvements required. 

N/A We comply with the 
Code 

 

P
age 30



 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 31

Appendix B

Jackie Floyd�
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 2 
 
 
 

Executive Summary 4 

Review of Compliance 7 

Section 1: The responsibilities of the chief finance officer and leadership team 9 

A – How the leadership team demonstrates value for money 9 

B - The role of the Chief Financial Officer 13 

Section 2: Governance and financial management 16 

    C & D – Responsibility for governance and Internal Control 16 

    E - Financial management style 19 

Section 3: Long to medium-term financial management 22 

F & G - Financial resilience and long-term financial strategy 22 

H - The Prudential Code for Capital Financing Authorities 25 

I - Medium-term financial planning 26 

Section 4: The annual budget 28 

J & K – Statutory obligations in setting the annual budget 28 

Section 5: Stakeholder engagement and business plans 29 

L - Stakeholder engagement 29 

M - Options appraisal 31 

Section 6: Monitoring financial performance 34 

N – Identifying and managing financial risks 34 

O – Monitoring of the Balance Sheet 35 

Section 7: External financial reporting 37 

P & Q – Financial reporting responsibilities of the CFO and presentation of financial outturn 37 

Appendix A - Evidence used in this review 38 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 32

Jackie Floyd�_1
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 3 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 33

Jackie Floyd�_2
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 4 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 34

Jackie Floyd�_3
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 5 
 
 
 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 35

Jackie Floyd�_4
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 6 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Q  

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 36

Jackie Floyd�_5
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 7 
 
 
 

• 

• 

• 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 37

Jackie Floyd�_6
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 8 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 38

Jackie Floyd�_7
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 9 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 39

Jackie Floyd�_8
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 10 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 40

Jackie Floyd�_9
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 11 
 
 
 

o 

o 

o 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 41

Jackie Floyd�_10
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 12 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 42

Jackie Floyd�_11
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 13 
 
 
 

• 

• 

• 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 43

Jackie Floyd�_12
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 14 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 44

Jackie Floyd�_13
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 15 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 45

Jackie Floyd�_14
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 16 
 
 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 46

Jackie Floyd�_15
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 17 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 47

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
Jackie Floyd�_16
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 18 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 48

Jackie Floyd�_17
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 19 
 
 
 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 49

Jackie Floyd�_18
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 20 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 50

Jackie Floyd�_19
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 21 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 51

Jackie Floyd�_20
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 22 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 52

Jackie Floyd�_21
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 23 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 53

Jackie Floyd�_22
Square


Jackie Floyd�_23
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 24 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 54

Jackie Floyd�_24
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 25 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 55

Jackie Floyd�_25
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 26 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 56

Jackie Floyd�_26
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 27 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 57

Jackie Floyd�_27
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 28 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 58

Jackie Floyd�_28
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 29 
 
 
 

• 

• 

• 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 59

Jackie Floyd�_29
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 30 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 60

Jackie Floyd�_30
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 31 
 
 
 

− 

− 

− 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 61

Jackie Floyd�_31
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 32 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 62

Jackie Floyd�_32
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 33 
 
 
 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 63

Jackie Floyd�_33
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 34 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 64

Jackie Floyd�_34
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 35 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 65

Jackie Floyd�_35
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 36 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 66

Jackie Floyd�_36
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 37 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 67

Jackie Floyd�_37
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 38 
 
 
 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 68

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/corporate-plan
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52885/4.0%20Audit%20Committee%20report%20-%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52885/4.0%20Audit%20Committee%20report%20-%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=650&MId=8522&Ver=4&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=650&MId=8522&Ver=4&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g8522/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-Dec-2022%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g8522/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-Dec-2022%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g8522/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-Dec-2022%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g8522/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-Dec-2022%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g8522/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-Dec-2022%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g8522/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-Dec-2022%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/corporate-plan
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s56086/Corporate%20Success%20Framework%202023-24%20Q3.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s56086/Corporate%20Success%20Framework%202023-24%20Q3.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55835/7%20Appendix%201%20-%20Corporate%20Plan%20Success%20Framework%202023-24%20Q3.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55835/7%20Appendix%201%20-%20Corporate%20Plan%20Success%20Framework%202023-24%20Q3.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54506/5.0%20Appendix%20C%20Lincolnshire%20County%20Council%20-%20VFM%20Progress%20Report%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54506/5.0%20Appendix%20C%20Lincolnshire%20County%20Council%20-%20VFM%20Progress%20Report%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52885/4.0%20Audit%20Committee%20report%20-%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52885/4.0%20Audit%20Committee%20report%20-%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf
Jackie Floyd�_38
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 39 
 
 
 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 69

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54506/5.0%20Appendix%20C%20Lincolnshire%20County%20Council%20-%20VFM%20Progress%20Report%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54506/5.0%20Appendix%20C%20Lincolnshire%20County%20Council%20-%20VFM%20Progress%20Report%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g8522/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-Dec-2022%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g8522/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-Dec-2022%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39982/CIPFA%20Financial%20Management%20FM%20Code%20Appendix%20A.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39982/CIPFA%20Financial%20Management%20FM%20Code%20Appendix%20A.pdf
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2023/02/councils-historic-governance-issues-symptomatic-wider-sector-problems?utm_term=&amp%3Butm_medium=email&amp%3Butm_source=Adestra
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=650&MId=8522&Ver=4&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=650&MId=8522&Ver=4&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=650&MId=8522&Ver=4&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cid=650&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54468/Appendix%20A%20-%20Updated%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20202122.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54468/Appendix%20A%20-%20Updated%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20202122.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54468/Appendix%20A%20-%20Updated%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20202122.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54468/Appendix%20A%20-%20Updated%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20202122.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=133
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/cipfa-survey-of-audit-committees-in-local-authorities-and-police
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=133
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g8522/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-Dec-2022%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g8522/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-Dec-2022%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55562/Draft%20Audit%20Committee%20Annual%20Report%202022.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55562/Draft%20Audit%20Committee%20Annual%20Report%202022.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55562/Draft%20Audit%20Committee%20Annual%20Report%202022.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55562/Draft%20Audit%20Committee%20Annual%20Report%202022.pdf
Jackie Floyd�_39
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 40 
 
 
 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 70

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=6122&Ver=4
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52886/4.0A%20DRAFT%20-%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52886/4.0A%20DRAFT%20-%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52886/4.0A%20DRAFT%20-%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52886/4.0A%20DRAFT%20-%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55677/Appendix%20A%20-%20Draft%20-%20Audit%20Committee%20Annual%20Report%202022.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55677/Appendix%20A%20-%20Draft%20-%20Audit%20Committee%20Annual%20Report%202022.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55677/Appendix%20A%20-%20Draft%20-%20Audit%20Committee%20Annual%20Report%202022.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55677/Appendix%20A%20-%20Draft%20-%20Audit%20Committee%20Annual%20Report%202022.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s53716/Risk%20Management%20Progress%20Report%20-%20September%202022.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s53716/Risk%20Management%20Progress%20Report%20-%20September%202022.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=6122&Ver=4
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52889/5.0A%20Appendix%20A%20-%20Internal%20Audit%20Annual%20report%202022%20Final_.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52889/5.0A%20Appendix%20A%20-%20Internal%20Audit%20Annual%20report%202022%20Final_.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52888/5.0%20Internal%20Audit%20Annual%20report.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54505/5.0%20Appendix%20B%20Current%20Audit%20Findings%20Report%20Lincolnshire%20County%20Council%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54505/5.0%20Appendix%20B%20Current%20Audit%20Findings%20Report%20Lincolnshire%20County%20Council%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54506/5.0%20Appendix%20C%20Lincolnshire%20County%20Council%20-%20VFM%20Progress%20Report%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54506/5.0%20Appendix%20C%20Lincolnshire%20County%20Council%20-%20VFM%20Progress%20Report%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55569/Budget%20Consultation%20Meeting%202023%20-%20Presentation%20Slides.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55569/Budget%20Consultation%20Meeting%202023%20-%20Presentation%20Slides.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/autumn-statement-2022-documents/autumn-statement-2022-html
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/autumn-statement-2022-documents/autumn-statement-2022-html
https://www.cipfa.org/services/financial-resilience-index/resilience-index
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g7365/Public%20reports%20pack%2017th-Feb-2023%2010.00%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g7365/Public%20reports%20pack%2017th-Feb-2023%2010.00%20Council.pdf?T=10
Jackie Floyd�_40
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 41 
 
 
 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 71

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52885/4.0%20Audit%20Committee%20report%20-%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52885/4.0%20Audit%20Committee%20report%20-%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52555/Review%20of%20Financial%20Performance%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52555/Review%20of%20Financial%20Performance%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s40386/Review%20of%20Financial%20Performance%202020-21.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s40386/Review%20of%20Financial%20Performance%202020-21.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52555/Review%20of%20Financial%20Performance%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52555/Review%20of%20Financial%20Performance%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54998/Revenue%20Budget%20Monitoring%20report%20-%20Quarter%202.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54998/Revenue%20Budget%20Monitoring%20report%20-%20Quarter%202.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55606/Appendix%20G%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39982/CIPFA%20Financial%20Management%20FM%20Code%20Appendix%20A.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39982/CIPFA%20Financial%20Management%20FM%20Code%20Appendix%20A.pdf
Jackie Floyd�_41
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 42 
 
 
 

 

122 

 
123  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 72

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39982/CIPFA%20Financial%20Management%20FM%20Code%20Appendix%20A.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39982/CIPFA%20Financial%20Management%20FM%20Code%20Appendix%20A.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/corporate-plan
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52555/Review%20of%20Financial%20Performance%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52555/Review%20of%20Financial%20Performance%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g7365/Public%20reports%20pack%2017th-Feb-2023%2010.00%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g7365/Public%20reports%20pack%2017th-Feb-2023%2010.00%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50798/Options%20for%20the%20Future%20Delivery%20of%20Corporate%20Support%20Services.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50798/Options%20for%20the%20Future%20Delivery%20of%20Corporate%20Support%20Services.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54468/Appendix%20A%20-%20Updated%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20202122.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54468/Appendix%20A%20-%20Updated%20Statement%20of%20Accounts%20202122.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55766/Appendix%20A%20-%20Budget%20Book%202023-24.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39982/CIPFA%20Financial%20Management%20FM%20Code%20Appendix%20A.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39982/CIPFA%20Financial%20Management%20FM%20Code%20Appendix%20A.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55599/Council%20Budget%202023%20-%2024.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s55599/Council%20Budget%202023%20-%2024.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=8495&Ver=4
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/6382/covering-letter-for-2020-21-auditor-s-report
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/4342/lcc-draft-statement-of-accounts-2019-20
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54505/5.0%20Appendix%20B%20Current%20Audit%20Findings%20Report%20Lincolnshire%20County%20Council%202021-22.pdf
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54505/5.0%20Appendix%20B%20Current%20Audit%20Findings%20Report%20Lincolnshire%20County%20Council%202021-22.pdf
Jackie Floyd�_42
Square




  

Lincolnshire County Council: CIPFA Financial Management Code Review (2023) 43 
 
 
 

 

 
 

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their 
clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide 
partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide 
services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or 
omissions.  

grantthornton.co.uk   

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFA94C5-9648-4CAE-8740-6E9498B37D25

Page 73

Jackie Floyd�_43
Square




Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: EEFA94C596484CAE87406E9498B37D25 Status: Completed
Subject: Complete with DocuSign: Lincolnshire FM Code Review Consultation Final1.pdf
Service Line: 
Document type:  Letter of Engagement/Contract
ID Type:  Work Order
ID: 175093-100
Source Envelope: 
Document Pages: 43 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 
Certificate Pages: 2 Initials: 0 Grant Thornton DocuSign Team
AutoNav: Enabled
EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled
Time Zone: (UTC) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London

grant.thornton.docusign.team@uk.gt.com
IP Address: 86.31.63.116   

Record Tracking
Status: Original
             18/4/2023 | 11:48

Holder: Grant Thornton DocuSign Team
             grant.thornton.docusign.team@uk.gt.com

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Grant Thornton UK LLP
phillip.woolley@uk.gt.com
Partner
Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 185.69.145.34

Sent: 18/4/2023 | 11:48
Viewed: 24/4/2023 | 10:40 
Signed: 24/4/2023 | 10:40

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Naima Kalam
Naima.Kalam@uk.gt.com
Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 18/4/2023 | 11:48
Viewed: 18/4/2023 | 11:48 
Signed: 18/4/2023 | 11:48

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Alexa FN Ngini
Alexa.FN.Ngini@uk.gt.com
Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 24/4/2023 | 10:40
Viewed: 24/4/2023 | 10:43 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Page 74

Jackie Floyd�_44
Square




Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 18/4/2023 | 11:48
Certified Delivered Security Checked 24/4/2023 | 10:40
Signing Complete Security Checked 24/4/2023 | 10:40
Completed Security Checked 24/4/2023 | 10:40

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Page 75

Jackie Floyd�_45
Square




This page is intentionally left blank



      
  

Open Report on behalf of Andrew Crookham, Executive Director of Resources 

 

Report to: Audit Committee 

Date: 24th July 2023 

Subject: 
Internal Audit Progress Report 2023/2024 
 

Decision 
Reference: 

  Key decision? No   

Summary:  

The purpose of this report is to provide the audit committee with details of the audit 
work completed to 1st July 2023, information on delivery progress and raise any matters 
of relevance. 
 
 

Recommendation(s): 

1. That the July progress report be noted for its revised format and content.  
2. Progress and delivery be noted and any actions that need to be taken. 

 

 
Background & Context 

 
The Internal Audit progress report covers the work delivered by the audit function between 
1st April and the 1st July 2023.  It shares the revised format that future progress reports will 
take and gives examples of the information to be included as the IAP delivery continues.  
This will enable the committee to have continued oversight and knowledge using consistent 
and pertinent information from the audit work delivered.  
 
Conclusion  
 
The audit work delivered to date is aligned with plan expectations and on track for the end 
of quarter two. 
 
 

 

 

 

Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter 1 2023/2024 

 
 

Page 77

Agenda Item 6



Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the preparation of this report. 
 
This report was written by Claire Goodenough Head of Internal Audit & Risk, who can be 
contacted via claire.goodenough@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 78



  

Internal Audit Progress Report – 
July 2023 

The Head of Internal Audit is required to provide 

a written status report to Senior Management 

and the Board, summarising internal audit 

activity. 

 

4th July 2023 Version 1.1  

P
age 79

A
ppendix A



2 | P a g e  
 

 
Table of contents 

Role of Internal Audit ……………………………………………………………….…3 

The purpose of the document ........................................................4 

Performance dashboard ..................................................................5 

Update on Internal Audit Activity………………………………………………. 6 

Analysis of ‘live’ audit reviews ........................................................8 

Executive summaries limited and low opinions ..............................9 

Planning and resourcing ................................................................10 

Rolling work programme ...............................................................10 

If applicable: 

Appendix 1 – Overdue high priority actions ........................... …N/A 

 

Appendix 2 – Overdue medium/low priority actions………….......N/A 

  

P
age 80



3 | P a g e  
 

Role of Internal Audit 

The requirement for an internal audit function in local governance is 
detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, 
which states that a relevant body must: 
 

‘Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 

effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 
standards and guidance.’ 
 

The standards for ‘proper practices’; are laid down in the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards -updated 2017]. 
 

The role of internal audit is best summarised through its definition 
within the Standards, as an: 
 

Independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s 

operations.  It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives 
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate 

and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, 
and governance processes’.  
 

The County Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
appropriate risk management processes, control systems, 
accounting records and governance arrangements.  Internal audit 
plays a vital role in advising the Country Council that these 

arrangements are in place and operating effectively.  
 

The County Council’s response to internal audit activity should lead 
to the strengthening of the control environment and, therefore, 
contribute to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 81



Page | 4  
 

The Purpose of the Report 

In accordance with the proper internal audit practices (Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards), and the Internal Audit Charter, the Head 
of Internal Audit is required to provide a written status report to 
Senior Management and the Board summarising: 
 

• the status of live internal audit reports. 
• an update on progress against the internal audit plan. 
• a summary of internal audit performance, planning and 

resourcing issues; and 
• a summary of significant issues that impact of the Head of 

Internal Audits annual opinion. 
 

From June 2023, internal audit reviews culminate in a revised 
opinion rating on the assurance that can be placed on the 
effectiveness of the framework of risk management, control and 
governance designed to support the achievement of management 
objectives of the service area under review.  Assurance opinions are 

categorised as follows: 
 

Substantial A reliable system of governance, risk management 
and control exist, with internal controls operating 
effectively and being consistently applied to support 
the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

 
Adequate There is a generally reliable system of governance, 

risk management and control in place.  Some issues 

of non-compliance or scope for improvement were 
identified which may put at risk the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

 

 
 

 
 
Limited Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were 

identified.  Improvement is required to the system of 
governance, risk management and control to 

effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

 
No Immediate action is required to address fundamental 

gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified.  The 
system of governance, risk management and control 
are inadequate to effectively manage risks in the 
achievement of the objectives for the area audited. 

 
This is a change to the assurance categorisation used during  
2022/2023.  
 
The revised ratings align with terminology widely used across the  
public sector.  They also provide greater less subjective definitions 
and improved understanding for areas of non-compliance or in  

monitoring the work required for any fundamental deficiency 
identified.  
 
 
 

P
age 82



Page | 5  
 

Performance Dashboard 

Figure 1 

 

Figure 1 shows the completion of the internal audit plan to date.  The 

team has been introduced to individually planning audit reviews to 

support timely delivery and reporting.  Line managers are involved 

in the oversight of delivery plans for each audit and responsible for 

delivery on milestone agreed during the planning stage.  The audit 

managers are responsible for the effective and timely delivery of 

their audit plans across the service. 

 

Figure 2 shows an example of the feedback received from all clients 

for work completed.  There is an expectation that all clients will 

provide feedback on their audit experience with the team.  The 

results of audit feedback will be used by managers in developing 

team and individual improvements as well as to inform training 

requirements and quality learning across the entire audit team. 

 

 

Figure 2  

 

 

 

 

27% of 
Plan 

Delivered

9% 
Complete

73% Yet to 
Commence

18% Work 
in Progress

0

2

4

6

8

10

Rating Excellent Good Adequate Poor

Audit Feedback

Planning Report Communication

P
age 83



Page | 6  
 

Update on Internal Audit Activity  

Since January 2023, the incoming Head of Internal Audit has 

undertaken an evaluation of the resource levels, audit 

delivery/understanding skills and organisation routines.  Several 

developments have arisen because of this evaluation.  These have 

been staged into the audit strategy for the coming three years. Year 

one, 2023/2024, includes the development and delivery of essential 

training.  This development programme was designed to improve 

audit seniors and officers understanding for each topic of internal 

audit, as shown in figure three.    

Most of the training has been designed and delivered by the Head of 

Internal Audit directly.  The delivery of this essential work resulted in 

a pause to the internal audit work across all clients, including 

Lincolnshire County Council.  Internal audit assurance work 

recommenced from 1st June 2023 with revised routines and 

processes in place for the seven areas of internal audit shown in 

figure three. 

An improvement strategy for the current year has been shared and 

understood across the team.  Initial feedback from much of the IA 

team has reported as being received with welcome enthusiasm. 

Audit colleagues are now turning their attention to delivering 

internal audit reviews using the revised methodology, 

communications, timescales, reporting and quality assurance. 

Audit managers will take ownership for the quality assurance, 

sufficiency and timely delivery of each audit review.  The final 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 3 

assurance rating will be awarded by the Head of Internal Audit to 

ensure consistency and validity in the decision.    

The improvement journey will continue throughout 2023/2024 and 

be developed further in subsequent years. Details will follow 

annually. 

A review of available resources identified a lack of capacity to 

provide adequate delivery.  Changes to the leadership team from 1st 

August, will support more effective and specialist delivery 

throughout risk management, counter fraud and internal audit.  A 

recruitment campaign has been approved and is underway to further 

investment in the team and provide sufficient delivery resource, to 

meet statutory obligations. Recruitment of internal audit 

professionals continues to be a challenge with experienced auditors 

and IT specialists being in high demand with significantly less 

P
age 84



Page | 7  
 

numbers entering the professional pipeline. The recruitment priority 

is to the LCC team. 

Investment in attribute recruitment is a sensible progress route 

which requires significant input from leaders to develop their 

knowledge, confidence and experience.  Currently the team has a 

lower number of qualified auditors than would be expected, 

resulting in this being a key area for future development and 

investment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 85



Page | 8  
 

Analysis of Audit Reviews 

Below is an example of the analysis to be shared with the committee at each progress report. It will show the audits in progress and completed 

along with any overdue management actions.  This approach will provide the committee with oversight of assurance ratings, areas of non-

agreement and implementation progress for actions to improve.  The report will also show the aggregated difference since the previous report. 

 

 

Audit Review
Report      

Date

Audit      

Sponsor

Assurance    

Opinion

Total 

Management 

Actions

Not 

Accepted

Not Yet    

Due
Completed

High Medium Low Critical

Green Master Plan Place

Home School Transport Place

TOTAL 1 4 12 0

Overdue Management Actions - Direction of Travel since previous Progress Report +1 +4 +12 0

Overdue

P
age 86



Page | 9  
 

Executive Summaries of ‘Limited’ or ‘No’ Assurance Opinions  

This section will share the number of limited or no assurance reports published since the last progress report.  As there are no reports published 

with this assurance rating, the table below is an example only. 

Audit Review Title: EXAMPLE GREEN MASTER PLAN   

Audit Sponsor Assurance Opinion Management Actions 

Executive Director of Place     

Summary of Key Observations: 

The review was undertaken following a recent thematic audit and focused on the operation of the XXXXXXX.  This section will outline a 

summary of the observations and include any management updates and progress agreed at the time of publication. 

 

Audit Review Title: EXAMPLE CORONARY SERVICES   

Audit Sponsor Assurance Opinion Management Actions 

Executive Director of Adult 

Care and Community 

Wellbeing 

    

Summary of Key Observations: 

As part of the internal audit plan for 2023/24, audit have undertaken a review of the processes in place to XXXXXXXX.  This section will outline 

a summary of the observations and include any management updates and progress agreed at the time of publication. 

 

Adequate Low 6 

3 

Medium 1 High 0 

Limited Low 4 

3 

Medium 10 High 4 

P
age 87



Page | 10  
 

Planning and Resourcing 

Due to the continuing challenges and uncertainties, presented by the pandemic and the recruitment of internal audit professionals, initial 

planning for 2023/2024 will focus on delivery from an indicative plan which can be delivered with the current resource. This will enable the plan 

to respond to any successful recruitment and develop as the benefits of the training programme are realised. Details of recruitment, resource 

impacts and utilisation of resources will be shared in this section. 

Quarter 1 work has mainly focused on resetting the requirements, expectations and sharing internal audit training across the team.  Several 

audit reviews scheduled for 2022/2023 had not been delivered because of the reduced resource availability.  As the internal audit plans develop 

through the next three years, the work programme will contain an overview of all work delivered and its stage in delivery. 

Section 7 shares an update on the delivery programme for Council audits. This will include audit assignments from 2022/23 and into 2023/2024.  

The report will hold a maximum of two years of internal audit work to allow the progress and delivery to be monitored.  As there has been a 

change to the assurance ratings applied to assurance work from 2023/2024, the equivalent updated rating has been included for 2022/2023. 

Rolling Work Plan  

Audit Review Audit      Sponsor Scoping 
Audit 

Objective 
Fieldwork 

Draft 
Report 

Final Report 
Assurance 
Opinion or 
Equivalent 

ASSURANCE WORK 2022/2023               

Capital Project Decision Making Process 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
✓ ✓ ✓ 27/02/2023 03/04/2023 

Substantial/ 
Adequate 

Allocation of COVID Business Grants 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
✓ ✓ ✓ 02/03/2023 06/03/2023 

Substantial/ 
Adequate 

Good Governance 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
✓ ✓ ✓ 23/06/2023   

Substantial/ 
Adequate 

Low Value Highways Insurance Claims 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
✓ ✓ ✓ 26/10/2022 21/11/2022 

Substantial/ 
Adequate 

P
age 88



Page | 11  
 

Adults Financial Assessments 

Executive 
Director Adult 

Care & 
Community 
Wellbeing 

✓ ✓ ✓ 27/03/2023 25/05/2023 
Substantial/ 

Adequate 

Corporate Plan and Success Framework 
Chief Executive 

Officer 
✓ ✓ ✓ 27/03/2023 17/04/2023 

Substantial/ 
Adequate 

ICT Microsoft Office 365 Security 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
✓ ✓ ✓ 28/10/2022 08/12/2022 

Substantial/ 
Adequate 

Insurance 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
✓ ✓ ✓ 31/03/2023 04/04/2023 

High/ 
Substantial 

Debtors 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
✓ ✓ ✓ 04/05/2023   

Substantial/ 
Adequate 

Bank Reconciliations 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
✓ ✓ ✓ 06/03/2023 10/04/2023 

Substantial/ 
Adequate 

GRANT WORK 2022/2023               

Supporting Families 1 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
          Complete 

Substance Misuse Grant 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
          Complete 

Bus Services Operator Grant 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
          Complete 

Supporting Families 2 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
          Complete 

Supporting Families 3 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
          Complete 

P
age 89



Page | 12  
 

Audit Review Audit      Sponsor Scoping 
Audit 

Objective 
Fieldwork 

Draft 
Report 

Final Report 
Assurance 
Opinion or 
Equivalent 

ASSURANCE WORK 2023/2024               

Green Master Plan 
Executive 

Director Place 
✓ ✓ ✓ ✓   Adequate 

Home School Transport 
Executive 

Director Place 
✓ ✓ 

In 
Progress 

      

Supporting Families 1 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 
✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓  Adequate 

 

 

P
age 90



      
  

Open Report on behalf of Andrew Crookham, Executive Director of Resources 

 

Report to: Audit Committee 

Date: 24th July 2023 

Subject: 
Internal Audit Plan 2023/2024 
 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

The risk based internal audit plan for 2023/2024 is presented to the Audit Committee 
for approval.  The annual plan aims to provide assurance across areas of risk 
risk/priority for the Council.  It considers governance, risk, internal control and current 
assurance arrangements.  Delivery of the plan also informs the Head of Internal Audit 
opinion. 
 
 

Recommendation(s): 

1. That the 2023/2024 Internal Audit Plan (IAP) be approved – subject to 
comments/amendments from the Audit Committee. 
 

 
Background & Context 
 
The Internal Audit Plan has been developed with consideration of the key risks and 
priorities identified for the current year.  It is a statement of intent and may be revised and 
updated during the year to ensure it responds to, and meets, any changing needs. 
 
Significant work has been delivered to reset team understanding and expectation of 
planning and delivery work.  This work has the intention of improving the quality of audit 
reports and the depth and breadth of work delivered to meet the risks and priorities 
identified, shared and discussed with directorate leadership. Work continues to formalise 
the amendments to the quality framework and working protocols.  Each of these will 
support audit’s conformance with best practice, professional standards and deliver added 
value and insight throughout delivery. 
 
The work delivered during 2023/2024 will act as a base review to provide the Head of Audit 
with oversight and awareness of governance, compliance, strength of controls and key risk 
management in operation across each of the Directorates.  The Head of Audit deems this 
work programme sufficient in its depth and breadth to inform the Head of Audit Annual 
opinion for 2023/2024. 

Page 91

Agenda Item 7



 
The Audit Charter has been slightly revised, to fall in line with the Institute of Internal 
Auditors’ latest model.  Following a significant change to an internal audit service, it is good 
practice to review the Charter. 
 
The Charter sets out the purpose, authority and responsibility expected from and to the 
audit service.  The revised Charter is shared with all external clients.   These include: 
 

• North Kesteven District Council 

• West Lindsey District Council 

• South Kesteven District Council 

• South Holland District Council 

• East Lindsey District Council 

• Boston Borough Council 

• Lincolnshire Schools and Academies 
 
Conclusion  
 
For the Audit Committee to confirm these arrangements are effective and will provide 
senior management and the Audit Committee with independent insight into the 
effectiveness of the control environment and how well the assurance arrangements work in 
practice.  The delivery of a risk-based IAP is essential in ensuring the probity and sufficiency 
of these systems. 
 
Consultation 

 
Risks and Impact Analysis 
N/A 

  
 
 

 

 
 

 

Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Internal Audit Plan 2023/2024 

Appendix B The Internal Audit Charter 2023 onwards 

 
Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the preparation of this report. 
 
This report was written by Claire Goodenough Head of Internal Audit & Risk, who can be 
contacted via claire.goodenough@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 92



1 
 

  

Internal Audit Plan  

2023/2024  

 

July 2023 Version 1.1 

P
age 93

A
ppendix A



2 
 

 
Table of contents 

Introduction ...........................................................................................3 

Your internal Audit Team ......................................................................4 

Conformance with internal audit Standards .........................................4 

Conflicts of Interest ...............................................................................4 

Developing the internal audit plan .......................................................5 

Internal Audit Plan 2023/2024  .............................................................6 

Audit Sponsor Information ……………………………………………………………….8 

  

P
age 94



3 
 

Introduction 

The Role of Internal Audit 
 
The role of internal audit is that of an: 
 

Independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 

designed to add value and improve an organisation’s 
operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives 
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate 
and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, 
and governance processes.’  

 
The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

appropriate risk management processes, control systems, 
accounting records and governance arrangements. Internal audit 
plays a vital role in advising the Council that these arrangements 
are in place and operating effectively. 
 

The Council’s response to internal audit activity should lead to the 
strengthening of the control environment and, therefore, 

contribute to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives. 
 
The aim of internal audit’s work programme is to provide 
independent and objective assurance to management, in relation 
to the business activities, systems and/or processes under review 
that: 
 

• the framework of internal control, risk management and 
governance is appropriate and operating effectively; and 

• risk to the achievement of the Council’s objectives is 
identified, assessed, and managed to a defined acceptable 
level. 
 

The internal audit plan provides the mechanism through which the 

Head of Internal Audi can ensure most appropriate use of internal 
audit resources to provide a clear statement of assurance on risk 
management, internal control, and governance arrangements. 
 
Internal audit focus should be proportionate and appropriately 
aligned. The plan will remain fluid and subject to on-going review 
and amendment, in consultation with the relevant audit sponsors, 

to ensure it continues to reflect the needs of the Council. 
Amendments to the plan will be identified through continued 
contact and liaison with those responsible for the governance of 
the Council. 
 

P
age 95



4 
 

Your Internal Audit Team 
Your internal audit service is led by Claire Goodenough, supported 

by Sara Jackson, Matt Waller, and Stacey Richardson as Audit 
Managers. The team is separated into delivery strands covering 
LCC, schools and academies and with five external clients. The LCC 
and schools team comprises of Sara Jackson, four principal auditors 
and is supported by several audit seniors and one officer. There is 

currently one vacancy at principal level and two at senior. Audit 
resource has been removed from client delivery to focus on the LCC 
delivery and our statutory obligations.  

 

Conformance with Internal Auditing Standards 
The internal audit team is designed to conform to Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Under the PSIAS there is a 
requirement for audit services to have an external quality 
assessment every five years. In February 2022, the CIPFA were 
commissioned to complete an external quality assessment of the 
Internal Audit Team at Lincolnshire County Council (Assurance 
Lincolnshire) against the PSIAS, Local Government Application Note 
and the International Professional Practice Framework.  

In their consideration of the evidence presented, the external 
assessment team concluded: 

“Assurance Lincolnshire partnership’s self-assessment is 
accurate and as such we conclude that they FULLY 
CONFORM to the requirements of the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards and the CIPFA Local Government 
Application Note.” 

 

 

Conflicts of Interest 

 The internal audit team are not aware of any relationships that 

may affect the independence and objectivity of the team which are 
required to be disclosed under internal auditing standards. “ 

 

Corporate Plan 

 

The Corporate Plan for Lincolnshire County Council sets out four 
key ambitions for what they want to achieve for residents and 
communities.  

These ambitions are: 

• support high aspirations; 

• enable everyone to enjoy life to the full; 

• create thriving environments; and 

• provide good value council services. 

The corporate plan acts as a framework for the Council to operate 
in a way that means they are clear on their ambitions. 

The ambitions are underpinned by a range of projects they will 
achieve to secure their performance. The success framework is 
supported by key performance indicators to demonstrate 
performance of services and key projects in Lincolnshire. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 96



5 
 

 

Developing the Internal Audit Plan 2023/2024 

Internal audit used various sources of information and data to inform the development of the internal audit plan. 

 

In determining the areas of work covered by the internal Audit team, various sources of 

information (figure 1)  and discussion have taken place.  These have involved the 

following groups: 

       Executive Leadership Team 

       Assistant Directors 

       Other Key Stakeholders 

       Governance Group. 

Figure 1 

 In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards there is a requirement that internal audit establish a risk-based audit plan to 

determine the resourcing of the internal audit service, consistent with the organisation’s goals. 

To ensure internal audit focus remains timely and relevant to the changing needs and requirements of the organisation, the audit team has 

moved to a two-stage planning process. This report contains proposed internal audit coverage during quarters one and two with indicative 

coverage included for quarters three and four.  Any amendments to the indicative delivery will be shared with the committee and senior 

management because of the risk-based approach.  

The Council are reminded that internal audit is only one source of assurance and through the delivery of our plan we will not, and do not, seek 

to cover all risks and processes within the organisation.  Internal audit will continue to work closely with other assurance providers to ensure 

that duplication is minimised, and a suitable breadth of assurance is obtained. 

 

Internal 
Audit Plan 

2023/2024

Committee 
Documents

Stakeholder 
Liaison

Emerging 
Issues

Corporate 
Plan

Strategic 
Risk Register

Internal 
Audit

External 
Audit

P
age 97



6 
 

Internal Audit Plan 2023/24  

 

Audit Review 
Audit      

Sponsor 
Potential Scope Risk Link 

Link to 
Corporate 

Plan 
Proposed Timing  

            

Green Master Plan 
Executive 
Director 

Place 

Governance, reporting, oversight and resource 
allocation around base data, the carbon master 
plan, use and availability of resources, 
communications, ownership, profile and priority.  

  
Create 
thriving 

environments 
Q1 

Supporting Family Grants 1 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 

Assurance over figures provided to the Department 
of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) 
relating to the Supported Families grant claims 
covering accuracy, eligibility, evidence and validity. 

    Q1 

Home School Transport 
Executive 
Director 

Place 

Assurance over delivery of service against policy and 
assessment of student needs against procedure. 

Inflation 

Enable 
everyone to 
enjoy life to 

the full 

Q2 

Emergency Planning/Business Continuity 

Executive 
Director 

Adult Care 
and 

Wellbeing 

Scrutiny and adequacy of departmental plans, wider 
understanding of business continuity from 
departmental perceptive. 

Resilience   Q2/3 

Supporting Family Grants 2 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 

Assurance over figures provided to the Department 
of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) 
relating to the Supported Families grant claims 
covering accuracy, eligibility, evidence and validity. 

    Q2/3 

P
age 98



7 
 

Audit Review 
Audit      

Sponsor 
Potential Scope Risk Link 

Link to 
Corporate 

Plan 
Proposed Timing  

Contract & Commissioning 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 

Assurance over the alignment of the procurement 
framework with the commercial strategy. Utilisation 
of the contract register in the oversight and 
management of value for money, efficiency and 
economies of scale. 

  

Providing 
good value 

council 
services 

Q3 

Business World 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 

Overview of key internal controls covering payroll, 
HR administration, external behaviours and training 
application. 

Key Controls 

Providing 
good value 

council 
services 

Q3-Q4 

Supporting Family Grants 3 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 

Assurance over figures provided to the Department 
of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) 
relating to the Supported Families grant claims 
covering accuracy, eligibility, evidence and validity. 

    Q3/4 

Social Work Assessment 

Executive 
Director 

Adult Care 
and 

Wellbeing 

Assurance over the care assessments procedures 
and processes and the use of charity and voluntary 
sectors to support with dependency. 

Safeguarding 
Adults 

Enable 
everyone to 
enjoy life to 

the full 

Q3 

Sickness Absence Management 
Executive 
Director 

Resources 

Assurance over the application of sickness absence 
policy for the management, reporting and delivery 
across a sample of directorates and services. 

  

Providing 
good value 

council 
services 

Q3 

Coroner Services 

Executive 
Director 

Adult Care 
and 

Wellbeing 

Utilising of additional financial investment to 
improve systems and processes to improve 
efficiency  

  

Providing 
good value 

council 
services 

Q4 

P
age 99



8 
 

Audit Review 
Audit      

Sponsor 
Potential Scope Risk Link 

Link to 
Corporate 

Plan 
Proposed Timing  

Contingency TBD 
Supportive and proactive work required by audit 
sponsors from priority changes and risk arising in 
the year 2023/24 

    Q3/4 

Follow Up and Evidence Call Work TBD 
Responding to limited and no assurance work 
delivered to ensure progress and satisfactory action 
implementation. 

  

Providing 
good value 

council 
services 

Q3/4 

 

Audit Sponsors         

 
    

  
Chief Executive  
Debbie Barnes 

  
Deputy Chief Executive               

Andrew Crookham 
  

 
    

Executive Director Place                                 
Andy Gutherson 

Executive Director of Children's 
Services                                         

Heather Sandy 

Executive Director of Adult 
Care and Community 

Wellbeing            
    Glen Garrod 

Director of Public Health                   
Derek Ward 

Executive Director of 
Resources    Andrew 

Crookham 

 

P
age 100



      
  

 

Open Report on behalf of Andrew Crookham, Executive Director of Resources 

 

Report to: Audit Committee 

Date: 24 July 2023 

Subject: Counter Fraud Work Plan 2023/24  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report provides the Committee with information on the proposed counter fraud 
activities for 2023/24 and draft Counter Fraud Work Plan. 
 
 

Recommendation(s): 

1. To review and approve the Counter Fraud Work Plan for 2023/24. 
 

 
Background 
 
The Counter Fraud Plan for 2023/24 is designed to deliver a tough response to fraud 
committed against local authorities in Lincolnshire. The draft work plan (Appendix A) is 
aligned to best practice guidance for countering fraud and corruption.  
 
Conclusion 

The Audit Committee plays a key role in monitoring the effectiveness of Counter Fraud 
arrangements. In considering the proposed Counter Fraud work plan the Committee 
should be able to: 
 

• Gain assurance that the Council has effective arrangements in place to fight fraud 
locally  

• Confirm that counter fraud resources are targeted to the Council's key fraud risks. 
 
Consultation 

 
 

 
 

 

 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

N/A 
 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 8



Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report: 

Appendix A Counter Fraud Work Plan 2023/24 

 
 

Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the preparation of this report. 
 
This report was written by Claire Goodenough, Head of internal Audit & Risk who can be 
contacted by email at Claire.Goodenough@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 102



 

  

Counter Fraud  
2023/24 Work Plan 

Lincolnshire County Council 

July 2023 
  

Page 103

Appendix A



Contents 
 
 
The Planning Process 

 
 

Page 2 
Introduction 
Strategic Aim 
Background  
Developing the plan 
 

 

  

Delivery and Focus Page 3 
Delivering the plan 
 

 

  

Appendices Page 5 
A – Draft Counter Fraud Plan  
 
 

 

 

 

 

The contacts at Assurance Lincolnshire are: 

 

Claire Goodenough 

Head of Audit and Risk Management  

Claire.goodenough@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 
Dianne Downs 
 
Internal Audit Team Manager 
 
Dianne.downs2@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Page 104

mailto:Claire.goodenough@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Dianne.downs2@lincolnshire.gov.uk


2 
 

The Planning Process 

Introduction 

This report sets out proposed work of the 

Counter Fraud and Investigation Team for 

2023/24.  The aim is to give you a high-level 

overview of the activities we are likely to cover 

during the year, with indicative scope for each 

theme. The draft plan gives you an opportunity 

to comment on the plan and the priorities that 

we have established.  

Our plan has been developed as a statement of 

intent to enable us to respond to changes during 

the year.  Whilst every effort will be made to 

deliver the plan, we recognise that we need to 

be flexible and prepared to revise activity, 

responding to changing circumstances or 

emerging risks, working within agreed resources. 

The Council's counter fraud arrangements are 

being reviewed and updated to demonstrate 

commitment to strong governance and best use 

of resources.  

Our response to Central Government's 

expectations for tackling fraud and corruption is 

reflected in the plan. It is important that we 

maintain our counter fraud response and 

resilience as the changes to the Council's service 

delivery continue to evolve. 

Background 

The Audit Committee provides oversight on the 

effectiveness of the Council's counter fraud 

arrangements – including the progress and 

delivery of this work plan. We provide Progress 

Reports during the year and an Annual Report on 

the outcome of our work.  

Our annual Counter Fraud Report for 2022/23 

delivered to the June 2023 Audit Committee,  

 

highlighted staffing challenges in the Council’s 

counter fraud service.  Resources had been 

targeted towards reactive investigations, with 

less capacity to focus on proactive counter fraud 

and anti-corruption activities.   

The risk of fraud against the public purse is ever 

present and a growing threat. We accepted that 

there was a clear need to boost our counter 

fraud arrangements, so that the Council remains 

able to effectively manage the risks of fraud and 

corruption at the Council.  

Developing the plan  

The Government has published a Local 

Government Counter Fraud and Corruption 

Strategy – ‘Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally’ 

(FFCL). The Strategy is supported by the CIPFA's 

Code of Practice for Managing the Risk of Fraud, 

providing a blueprint for a tough response to 

fraud committed against local authorities. 

The Council's counter fraud arrangements are 

being refreshed so that they continue to adhere 

to the principles and specific areas expected and 

identified in the CIPFA Code of Practice and 

response to recommendations from FFCL.  

To ensure that the plan reflects key areas, we 

have aligned the 2023/24 Counter Fraud plan to 

the CIPFA Code's 5 key principles: 

 
▪ Acknowledge responsibility  
▪ Identify risks  
▪ Develop Strategy 
▪ Provide resources 
▪ Take action  

 
This includes early focus on setting the ‘tone 
from the top’, continued pro-active work to 
prevent and detect fraud, and resource for 
investigation when fraud is suspected. 

 

Page 105



3 
 

Delivery and Focus 

Delivering the Plan  
 

We will focus on CIPFA Principles A-D during the 
first few months of our plan. This means we can 
establish a solid foundation so that future 
activity can be more effective and better 
targeted for maximum impact. Appendix A sets 
out a detailed work plan.  
 

Strategic Aims 

We have set out proposals to counter fraud and 

corruption:  

• Deliver proactive fraud prevention and 
detection work across LCC whilst 
undertaking investigations in a timely 
and efficient manner.   

• Develop effective communication with 
managers, keeping them appropriately 
informed of progress and areas of 
further review.  

• Shift of focus from large investigation 

towards value added and enhancing 
work.  

• Intelligence gathering and sharing of 
fraud risks to feed into audits and wider 
risk management.  

 

 
We intend to translate this into a short policy 
statement for the Council, that can be 
communicated widely.  
 

Allocation of Counter Fraud Resources 

It will be necessary to boost the Council’s 
resources available for Counter Fraud and 
Investigations, so that we can deliver these 
proposals set out in this plan. Current 
arrangements are set out at Figure 1. below.  
Limited investigator resource means that until 
further investigators are recruited, the Principal 
Auditor will continue to support with 
investigations. 
 
We expect to increase investigation resource, 
and revised proposals are shown at Figure 2.  

  
 

 

 

Figure 1 – structure on 01 July 2023.  

Internal Audit Team Manager 

(0.8  FTE covering Counter fraud and 
investigations, LCC Audits, School Audits and 

external Academies Audits) 

LCC, Schools & 
Academies Auditors  

(5x FT posts at 
01/07/2023). 

Principlal 
Investigator ( 0.46 

FTE) 

Principal Auditor -
Counter Fraud (FT 

from 01/05/23)

Senior Auditor-
Counter Fraud (FT 
from 01/06/2023). 

Page 106



4 
 

 

 
Figure 2 – proposed new structure – subject to successful recruitment campaigns. 

 

Recruitment for the vacant posts is due to 

launch early July.  Once new investigators 

are appointed and inducted, this will enable 

the Principal Auditor (Counter Fraud) to shift 

focus towards proactive activity. The work 

plan (Appendix A) will be re-reviewed and 

brought back to the November Audit 

Committee.   

The November update will bring the Audit 

Committee more detail about proposals for 

actions.  We anticipate this will include pro-

active reviews to prevent fraud and 

corruption. (CIPFA Principal E).  

 

 

 

In addition to ongoing recruitment activity, 

other early priorities include:  

• Induction and training the new Senior 
Auditor (Counter fraud)  

• Review of whistleblowing processes and 
how we capture information about 
referrals received.  

• Review of investigations processes – to 
assess whether steps can be 
streamlined for a quicker turnaround of 
investigations. 

• Review of fraud risk registers to shape 
planning for proactive counter fraud 
work.   

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Team Manager -
dedicated role to Counter Fraud and 

Investigations (0.6)

Principlal 
Investigator ( 0.46 

FTE) 

Principlal 
Investigator (1x FT)  

Vacant pending 
recruitment

Senior Investigator 
(1x FT)  Vacant 

pending  
recruitment

Senior Investigator 
(1x FT)  Vacant 

pending  
recruitment

Senior Auditor-
Counter Fraud (FT 
from 01/06/2023). 

Senior Auditor-
Counter Fraud (FT 
from 01/06/2023). 

Page 107



5 
 

 

 

A: Acknowledge responsibility 

CIPFA Code of Practice  Activities  Detail Target 

A1 - Acknowledge the threat of fraud and 

corruption 

Establish clear ‘Tone 

from the Top’ 

Consultation with Audit Committee Members and 

Corporate Leadership of the Council to develop short policy 

statement, with views on ‘zero tolerance’ to fraud, risk 

appetite and confirmation of support for approach.  

30 September 2023 

A2 - Acknowledge the importance of a culture 

that is resilient to the threats of fraud and 

corruption 

   

P
age 108



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

6 
 

A3 - Governing Body acknowledges its 

responsibility for the management of its fraud 

and corruption risks 

   

A4 - Governing Body sets a specific goal of 

ensuring and maintaining its resilience to fraud 

and corruption 

   

 

P
age 109



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

7 
 

B: Identify Risks 

CIPFA Code of Practice  Activity  Detail Target 

B1 - Fraud risks are routinely considered 

as part of risk management 

arrangements 

CARM engagement 

Audit team training.  

Further develop use of risk intelligence 

across CARM and share fraud risks and 

intelligence gathered for integration into 

audit planning.  Training about fraud red 

flags. 

31 May 2025 

B2 - The organisation identifies the risks 

of fraud and corruption 

Fraud Risk register 

Fraud Risk register 

Horizon Scanning  

Review and update of fraud risk register 

content. 

FRR report to Audit Committee for 

consideration 

Networking and intelligence gathering of 

national fraud landscape and emerging 

fraud risk areas.  

31 October 2023 

30 November 2023 

31 March 2024 (continuous 

review) 

P
age 110



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

8 
 

B3 - The organisation publishes estimates 

of fraud loss to aid evaluation of fraud 

risk exposures 

Annual Fraud Report Refresh annual  reporting template ready to 

include all mandatory transparency data for 

publication and newly developed KPI 

information.  

2023/24 Annual Report presented to Audit 

Committee 

31 March 2024 

30 June 2024 

B4 – The organisation evaluates the harm 

to its aims and objectives  

Fraud Risk register As above (B2).  
 

 

  

P
age 111



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

9 
 

C: Develop Strategy 

CIPFA Code of Practice  Activity  Detail Target 

C1 - Governing Body formally adopts 

a counter fraud and corruption 

strategy to address identified risks 

  

Annual Work Plan 

Annual Strategy and Policy Review 

Indicative work plan for 2023/24 

presented to Audit Committee,  

Updated version to be confirmed a 

part of Audit Committee Counter 

Fraud Progress Report  

31 July 2023 

30 November 2023. 

C2 - Strategy includes the 

organisation's use of joint working or 

partnership approaches 

Lincolnshire Counter Fraud 

Partnership 

Review of current partnership 

arrangements for effectiveness.  

31 March 2024 

P
age 112



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

10 
 

C3 - The strategy includes both 

proactive and responsive 

approaches: 

C3 - The strategy includes both 

proactive and responsive 

approaches: 

Training assessment 

Fraud Communications Strategy 

Planning for proactive exercises 

Whistle-blowing 

Prompt and efficient investigations 

Identify priority areas for fraud 

awareness training for LCC 

employees and service areas.  This 

will be linked to fraud risk 

assessments and will feed into 

activity planning and into a 

ccommunications plan. 

Strategy developed to include 

internal messaging for LCC and 

partnership approach for external 

communications.  

Update to be provided as part of 

Committee progress report 

Review policy and process for 

confidential reporting and whistle-

blowing. To include records 

maintenance review  

Review/ update investigation 

practice notes to support timely and 

efficient investigations and confirm 

process for manager updates. 

31 October 2023 

31 March 2024 

30 November 2023.  

30 September 2023 

31 March 2024 

P
age 113



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

11 
 

This will drive improvements of 

investigations around planning, 

communications and timely delivery. 

To be linked to KPIs (E5). 

 

  

P
age 114



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

12 
 

D: Provide resources 

CIPFA Code of Practice  Activity  Detail Target 

D1 - Annual assessment whether 

level of resource invested to 

countering fraud and corruption is 

proportionate to the level of risk 

Internal Audit of Counter Fraud 

Arrangements  

Annual Plans & Report to committee 

confirming resource proposals.  

Annual self-assessment 

Peer review by NEL Council to 

provide independent assessment 

and provide assurance for Audit 

Committee. 

Included at C1 & C3 

Self assessment against FFCL 

31 July 2023 

Annually July & November 

June 2024.  P
age 115



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

13 
 

D2 - The organisation utilises an 

appropriate mix of experienced and 

skilled staff 

Recruitment  

Training plans 

Principal Auditor- Counter Fraud 

Senior Auditor – Counter Fraud 

Principal Investigator 

Senior Investigator x 2 

To be include training for the team 

on : 

• Whistle-blowing 

• Anti-Money-Laundering 

• Best practice in Counter 

Fraud 

Training plans will be developed 

further as part of appraisal and staff 

development processes.   

Recruited May 2023 

Started 1 June 2023 

30 September 2023 

31 August 2023 

31 March 2024 

 

  

P
age 116



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

14 
 

CIPFA Code of Practice  Activity  Detail Target 

D3 - The organisation grants 

counter fraud staff unhindered 

access to its employees 

Audit Charter Ensure Audit Charter grants 

appropriate access for Counter 

Fraud Staff to support proactive 

and reactive fraud reviews. 

31 March 2024 

D4 - The organisation has protocols 

in place to facilitate joint working 

and data and intelligence sharing    

Lincolnshire Counter Fraud 

Partnership 

See C2 

(To include review of confidential 

reporting arrangements)  

31 March 2024 

 

  

P
age 117



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

15 
 

E: Take Action 

CIPFA Code of Practice  Activity  Detail Target 

E1 - The organisation has put in 

place a policy framework which 

supports the implementation of the 

Counter Fraud Strategy 

Activity Planning  Interim plan with initial focus on 

strategy.   

Detail of proactive reviews to be 

taken back to committee, once 

resources in place.  

31 July 2023 

30 November 2023 

E2 - Plans and operations are aligned 

to the strategy 

Activity planning  Detailed plan for pro-active to be 

drawn up  -  reviews on higher risk 

areas – to be planned 

linked to fraud risk assessment.  

30 November 2023 

P
age 118



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

16 
 

E3 - Making effective use of 

initiatives to detect and prevent 

fraud, such as data matching or 

intelligence sharing 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 

Counter Fraud Hub 

Processing of data matches returned 

by Cabinet Office as part of 2-yearly 

NFI matching exercise.  

Regular updates and  development 

of new content with internal 

promotion of Hub to staff.  Including 

spotting red flags and how to report 

concerns. 

31 March 2025.  

31 March 2024 

E4 - Providing for independent 

assurance over fraud risk 

management, strategy and activities 

Internal Audit of Counter Fraud 

Arrangements  

See D1 31 July 2023 

CIPFA Code of Practice  Activity  Detail Target 

P
age 119



                                                                             APPENDIX A – 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 

 

17 
 

E5 - Report to the Governing Body at 

least annually on performance 

against the counter fraud strategy 

and the effectiveness of the 

strategy. Conclusions are featured 

within the Annual Governance 

report   

Annual Report  

Develop KPIs 

See B3 

Review and develop KPIs for 

investigations and Counter Fraud 

delivery. 

March 2024 

 

P
age 120



 
 

Open Report on behalf of Andrew Crookham, Executive Director of Resources 

 

Report to: Audit Committee 

Date: 24 July 2023 

Subject: Audit Committee Work Programme 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report provides the Committee with information on the core assurance activities currently 
scheduled for the work plan. 
 

 

Recommendation(s): 

To review and amend the Audit Committee's work plan ensuring it contains the assurance 
areas necessary to approve the Annual Governance Statement 2022. 

 

Background 
 
1. The work plan, as attached at Appendix A, has been compiled based on the core 

assurance activities of the Committee as set out in its terms of reference and best 
practice. 

 
Training and Development Programme 
 
2. An important element of the Audit Committee’s effectiveness is continuous training and 

development.  This enables committee members to remain up to date on key issues, 
hot topics and any developments that impact on Audit Committee role and remit.   

 
3. After discussion with the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Audit Committee the 

following training and development programme is proposed. 
 

Session One – A half day event – in person event at Lincoln (Date to be confirmed). 
Covering the following topics: 

• Effective Audit Committee – CIPFA has issued some new guidance for Audit 
Committees.  We propose to recap and run through any changes.  We will also 
undertake an assessment of the effectiveness of the Committee – benchmarked 
against this best practice guidance. 

• Risk Management – demonstration of new risk management software.  

Page 121

Agenda Item 9



• Horizon scanning – picking up some of the big issues and risks facing public sector, 
how they potentially impact the governance and control framework of the 
council.  Looking to develop the forward work plan – agenda items.   

 
Webinars – Team meeting training events.  1 hour sessions on key elements of the 
Committee role and remit.  Scheduled over 2023.  

• Risk management – recap on how risks are managed – our risk appetite – how we 
gain oversight and assurance that our risk and issues are being effectively 
managed. 

• Counter Fraud – recap on our approach our fraud risk register with horizon 
scanning from a fraud perspective. 

• Good governance and our assurance arrangements.  Propose a workshop with 
Overview Scrutiny Management Board on how our governance and assurance 
arrangements measure up against good practice and recent public interest reports. 

 
4. Lincolnshire Audit Committee Forum – there’s been a number of requests for this 

forum to be reinstated.  This is where Lincolnshire Audit Committees meet to share 
their experience – bring out common themes and risks facing the public sector and 
how Audit Committees can help improve the governance, risk and control 
environment.  We will look to arrange a meeting in 2023.   

 
5. Working with Overview & Scrutiny Management Board (OSMB)– quarterly meetings 

held to discuss areas of common interest.  Work programmes are shared and the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee attends (OSMB) as appropriate (depending on 
agenda items) and vice versa.  

 
6. Emerging Risks - A verbal update / discussion on any emerging high-risk areas that the 

Committee may wish to consider for future agenda items. 
 
7. Action Tracker- Appendix B – keeps track of actions agreed by the Committee and future 

potential agenda items. 
 
Conclusion 
 
8. The work plan helps the Audit Committee effectively deliver its terms of reference and 

keeps track of areas where it requires further work and/or assurance. 
 
Consultation 
 
a)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 

No 

b)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

N/A 

 

Page 122



Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Work Programme 

 
 
Background Papers 
 
No Background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used in 
the preparation of this report. 
 
This report was written by Claire Goodenough, Head of Audit and Risk Management, who 
can be contacted Claire.Goodenough@lincolnshire.gov.uk  
 
  

Page 123

mailto:Claire.Goodenough@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Appendix A - Audit Committee Work Plan 2023/24 

 

24 July 2023 – 10.00 am 

Item Contributors Assurances Required/ Sought 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
– June 2023 

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
Dianne Downs (Audit 
Manager) 
 
 

Gain an understanding of the level of 
assurances being provided by the Head of 
Internal Audit over the Council's 
governance, risk and internal control 
arrangements and why. 
 
The Internal Audit Plan focuses on the 
key risks facing the Council and is 
adequate to support the Head of Audit 
opinion. 
 
Confirm that the plan achieves a balance 
between setting out the planned work 
(must do’s) for the year and retaining 
flexibility to changing risks and priorities 
during the year. 
 

Monitoring Officer's Annual 
Report  

David Coleman 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Confirm compliance with the Council's 
code of conduct and constitutional 
arrangements – ensuring the lawfulness 
of decisions and promoting / maintaining 
high standards of conduct by officers and 
members. 

Update on the CIPFA Financial 
Management Code and 
Financial Resilience 

Michelle Grady 
(Assistant Director – 
Finance) 
Sue Maycock (Head of 
Finance – Corporate) 

Provide assurance that the Council's 
arrangements follow good practice - 
supporting financial resilience, sound 
financial management and VfM. 
Gain assurance on implementation of 
improvement actions identified through 
self assessment: 
External Audit VFM self-assessment  
CIPFA Financial Management Code  
Grant Thornton Review – March / April 
2023 

Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 
 
 

That the Internal Audit Plan focuses on 
the key risks facing the Council and is 
adequate to support the Head of Audit 
opinion. 
Confirm that the plan achieves a balance 
between setting out the planned work for 
the year and retaining flexibility to 
changing risks and priorities during the 
year. 
Ensure that the Internal Audit Resource 
has sufficiently capacity and capabilities 
to maintain an effective internal audit 
function.   

Page 124



 

Counter Fraud Plan 2022/23 Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 
 

On the overall effectiveness of the 
Authority's arrangements to counter 
fraud and corruption. 

25 September 2023 – 10.00 am 

Item Contributors Assurances Required/ Sought 

Adult Social Care markets risk 
on the strategic risk register 

Glen Garrod (Executive 
Director of Adult Care 
and Community 
Wellbeing) 
 

 

External Auditors Audit 
Completion Report 2021/22 

Representatives of 
Mazars  

Consider the outcome of the External 
Audit and the appropriateness of 
management responses.  
 
Consider any concerns arising from the 
financial statements or from the audit 
that need to be brought to the attention 
of the Council. 
 
Consider the proposed Value for Money 
Conclusion and any matters arising. 

Statement of Accounts 
2021/22 (Final Audited) 

Sue Maycock (Head of 
Finance – Corporate) 
 

Ensure that the explanatory forward to 
the accounts help the public understand 
the authority's financial management of 
public funds. 
 
Consider the outcome of the External 
Audit and the appropriateness of 
management responses. 
 
Consider any concerns arising 

External Audit Strategy 
2022/23 Lincolnshire County 
Council and Lincolnshire 
Pension Fund 

Representatives of 
Mazars  

Consider the outcome of the External 
Audit and the appropriateness of 
management responses.  
 
Consider any concerns arising from the 
financial statements or from the audit 
that need to be brought to the attention 
of the Council. 
 
Consider the proposed Value for Money 
Conclusion and any matters arising. 

Statement of accounts 
2022/23 – Lincolnshire County 
Council & Pension Fund 

Sue Maycock (Head of 
Finance – Corporate) 
 

Ensure that the explanatory forward to 
the accounts help the public understand 
the authority's financial management of 
public funds. 
 

Page 125



Consider the outcome of the External 
Audit and the appropriateness of 
management responses. 
 
Consider any concerns arising 

Audit Completion Report 
2022/23 – Lincolnshire County 
Council & Pension Fund 

Representatives of 
Mazars 

Consider the outcome of the External 
Audit and the appropriateness of 
management responses. 
 
Consider any concerns arising from the 
financial statements or from the audit 
that need to be brought to the attention 
of the Council 
 
Consider the proposed Value for Money 
Conclusion and any matters arising. 
 

Risk Management Progress 
Report – September 2023 

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 
Mandy Knowlton-
Rayner (Insurance & 
Risk Manager) 
 

Seek assurance that risk-related issues 
are being addressed. 
 

Approval of the Council's 
Annual Governance Statement 
2021/22  

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 

Confirm that the final Annual Governance 
Statement accurately reflects the 
Committees understanding of how the 
Council is run. 

13 November 2023 – 10.00 am 

Item Contributors Assurances Required/ Sought 

Draft Audit Committee Annual 
Report 2023 
 

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 

Provide assurance that the Committee 
has adequately discharged its terms of 
reference and has positively contributed 
to how well the Council is run. 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
– September / October  2023 

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 
 

Gain an understanding of the level of 
assurances being provided by the Head of 
Internal Audit over the Council's 
governance, risk and internal control 
arrangements and why. 
 
The Internal Audit Plan focuses on the 
key risks facing the Council and is 
adequate to support the Head of Audit 
opinion. 
 
Confirm that the plan achieves a balance 
between setting out the planned work 
(must do’s) for the year and retaining 
flexibility to changing risks and priorities 
during the year. 

Page 126



Strategic Risk – Deep Dive 
(Selected by the Committee)  

Risk Owner  

That risk management processes working 
effectively – with appropriate oversight 
and monitoring of control actions in place 
or being developed. 

Fraud Risk Register 

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 
 

Confirm that the Council’s counter fraud 
activity is targeted and effective. 

Horizon Scanning  
 

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 

To provide early signs of potentially 
important developments – identifying 
potential treats, risks, emerging issues 
and opportunities. 

5 February 2024 – 10.00 am 

Item Contributors Assurances Required/ Sought 

Combined Assurance Status 
Reports – 2023/24 

Chief Executive, 
Executive Directors, and 
Chief Fire Officer 

Understand the level of assurances being 
provided on the Council's critical 
systems, key risks and projects and how 
they link to the Committees role and 
remit and the Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 
Seeking assurance that they are working 
well and that any significant risk and 
issues are being actively managed. 

25 March 2024 – 10.00 am 

Item Contributors Assurances Required/ Sought 

External Audit Strategy – 
Lincolnshire County Council & 
Pension Fund 2023/24 

Representatives of 
Mazars 

Seek assurance over progress and 
delivery of the external audit plan and 
that any risks to successful production of 
the financial statements and audit are 
being managed. 

Statement of Accounts 
2023/24 – Accounting Policies  

Sue Maycock (Head of 
Finance – Corporate) 

Confirm that the appropriate accounting 
policies are being applied and understand 
the impact of any material changes that 
affect the Council's or Pension fund 
accounts. 

Risk Management Progress 
Report – March 2024 

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 
Mandy Knowlton-
Rayner (Insurance & 
Risk Manager) 
 

Seek assurance that risk-related issues 
are being addressed. 

Page 127



Counter Fraud Plan 2024/25 

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 
 
 

On the overall effectiveness of the 
Authority's arrangements to counter 
fraud and corruption. 

Internal Audit Plan 2024/25 

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 
 
 

That the Internal Audit Plan focuses on 
the key risks facing the Council and is 
adequate to support the Head of Audit 
opinion. 
Confirm that the plan achieves a balance 
between setting out the planned work for 
the year and retaining flexibility to 
changing risks and priorities during the 
year. 
Ensure that the Internal Audit Resource 
has sufficiently capacity and capabilities 
to maintain an effective internal audit 
function.   

Internal Audit Progress Report 
– March 2024 

Claire Goodenough 
(Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management) 
 
 
 

Gain an understanding of the level of 
assurances being provided by the Head of 
Internal Audit over the Council's 
governance, risk and internal control 
arrangements and why. 
Confirm that the plan achieves a balance 
between setting out the planned work 
(must do’s) for the year and retaining 
flexibility to changing risks and priorities 
during the year. 
Is adequate to support the Head of Audit 
opinion. 
 

 
Items to be programmed: 
 
Integration of Health and Social Care (including IMT) – Glen Garrod (Executive Director of Adult Care 
and Community Wellbeing) 

Page 128


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 19 June 2023
	4 Monitoring Officer Annual Report
	5 Update on the CIPFA Financial Management Code and Financial Resilience
	5.1 Appendix A CIPFA Financial Management Code Action Plan July 2023
	5.2 Appendix B Grant Thornton and LCC Independent Review Report

	6 Internal Audit Progress Report 2023/2024
	6.1 IA Progress Report July 2023

	7 Internal Audit Plan 2023/2024
	7.1 IAP Report 2023-24

	8 Counter Fraud Work Plan 2023/24
	8.1 Counter Fraud Plan 2023-24

	9 Audit Committee Work Programme

		2023-04-24T02:43:37-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




